CITY OF ELKO
CITY MANAGER
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801
(775) T77-T110/FAX (775) 777-7119

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, February 12, 2019
Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801, at 4:00 P.M., P.S.T.
Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council.
In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko

Website, http://www.elkocity.com, the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website,

https://notice.nv.gov in the following locations:

ELKO CITY HALL
1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801
Date: Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 8:30 a.m.

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
571 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 8:40 a.m.

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT
1448 Silver, Elko NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 8:50 a.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.

Posted by: __ Kim Wilkinson Administrative Assistan

Name Title ignature

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at
kwilkinson @elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV or
on the City website at http://www.elkocity.com

Dated this 7" day of February, 2019

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Members of the public who are disabled and require special,accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, 175 eue, Elko, Nevada 89801,
or by calling (775) 777-7110.

Curtis Calder, City Manager




CITY OF ELKO
CITY MANAGER
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801
(775) 777-7110/FAX (775) 777-7119

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, February 12, 2019
Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801, at 4:00 P.M., P.S.T.
Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council.
In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko

Website, http://www.elkocity.com, the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website,

https://notice.nv.gov in the following locations:

ELKO CITY HALL
1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801
Date: Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 8:30 a.m.

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
571 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 8:40 a.m.

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT
1448 Silver, Elko NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 8:50 a.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: February 7, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.

Posted by: _ Kim Wilkinson____Administrative Assnstan%v(a'ﬁ/éi&md o

Name Title 1gnature

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at
kwilkinson @elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV or
on the City website at http://www.elkocity.com

Dated this 7" day of February, 2019

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, 175 €nue, Elko, Nevada 89801,
or by calling (775) 777-7110.

Curtis Calder, City Manager




CITY OF ELKO
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING
4:00 P.M.. PS.T.. TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2019
ELKO CITY HALL, 1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted for
this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: January 22, 2019 Regular Session

L. PRESENTATIONS

A. Reading of a proclamation recognizing the month of February as “Beef Month,”
and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM

B. Presentation of the “National Radon Action Month Proclamation” to Nadia Noel,
Radon Education Coordinator, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, and
matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM

IL CONSENT AGENDA

A. Review and possible designation of an independent auditor to prepare the annual
audit for the City of Elko for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019, pursuant to NRS
354.624, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Each year the City is required to designate an independent auditor prior to March
31 of the year in which the audit is to be conducted. The City put out Requests for
Proposals for auditing services for a period of five years on March 2016, and
awarded the RFP to HintonBurdick, PLLC. JJ

B. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of current FEMA’s Schedule of
Equipment Rates for City of Elko equipment charge outs, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

02/12/2019 City Council Agenda 1




The City of Elko has not updated its equipment rate schedule since June of 2005.
In order to facilitate charge outs for reimbursement for equipment utilized by the
City of Elko in the event of an incident of accident requiring our assistance the City
needs rate schedules to charge for the equipment used in the incident. FEMA has a
very extensive equipment rate schedule which they update periodically. DS

Review, consideration, and possible adoption of the updated City of Elko Storm
Water Advisory Committee (SWAC) Bylaws, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Committee felt there were a couple of items that needed to be modified. See
the copy of the SWAC Bylaws showing the tracked changes. DS

Review, consideration, and possible acceptance of a Deed of Dedication (requested
by the City) from the Elko County School District to the City of Elko for a
permanent non-exclusive Right of Way, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The purpose of this right of way is to allow the City a location to run a future water
line connecting North 5™ Street to BLM property where this water line would
continue on to a future tank site. RL

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a list of appraisers recommended
by the City Manager for purposes of conducting appraisals during the 2019 calendar
year, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code Section 8-1-1 requires the City Manager or designee to compile
and to submit a list of appraisers qualified to conduct business in the City of Elko
to the City Council on or about January 1 of each year. The Planning Department
has developed a list of qualified appraisers interested in conducting business with
the City of Elko and the City Manager has approved the list. CL

III. PERSONNEL

A.

Mayoral designation of City Council members to specific “Liaison” positions
within the City of Elko, and matters related thereto. NO ACTION BY THE
COUNCIL REQUIRED

Designation of a Council member to the Arts and Culture Advisory Board. CC

IV.  APPROPRIATIONS

A.

02/12/2019

Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Review and possible approval of Print ‘N Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City Council Agenda 2



02/12/2019

Review, consideration, and possible direction to Staff to solicit bids for the East
Secondary Clarifier Rehabilitation Project-2019, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

This is a maintenance project budgeted for in the current year budget. The work
consists of sandblasting and repainting all metal surfaces above and below the
waterline of the clarifier with 3 or 4 coats of paint, respectively. Additionally, any
damaged components noticed will be repaired during this time while the clarifier is
drained of water. RL

Review, consideration, and possible action to retain the law firm of Taggart and
Taggart, Ltd. to represent the City of Elko in pending litigation brought by the
Pershing County Water Conservation District against the Nevada Division of Water
Resources, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On August 12, 2015, Pershing County Water Conservation District (PCWCD),
which is principally composed of agricultural interests owning water rights in the
Lovelock area, filed a petition in the 11™ Judicial District Court (Pershing County)
asking the court to require the State Engineer to make a number of decisions
potentially having significant adverse impacts on water rights throughout the
Humboldt River Basin.

If the court grants the relief requested by PCWCD, curtailment of ground water
pumping could be required in the Elko Segment of the Humboldt River Basin. This
and other matters before the court could significantly hamper the City’s ability to
utilize its water rights, with consequential impacts on growth and economic
development.

Both Newmont and Barrick have filed motions to intervene.

Staff believes that the City of Elko is an interested and affected party in this matter
and has an interest in the outcome of the PCWCD litigation in Pershing County. By
intervening in the litigation, the City of Elko would have the opportunity to protect
its water rights through the legal process.

The law firm of Taggart and Taggart, Ltd. specializes in water rights litigation and
is currently representing at least one other party seeking to intervene in the lawsuit.
The law firm has indicated that it could also represent the City without a conflict of
interest. There would be an economic benefit to using the same law firm to
represent one or more similarly-situated parties in the litigation. RL

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Professional Services Agreement
(PSA) with Lumos and Associates for design of the Exit 298 Lift Station and Sewer
Force Main project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

At the January 8, 2018 City Council meeting, Council directed Staff to negotiate a

professional services agreement with Lumos and Associates and bring that
agreement back to City Council for final approval. RL

City Council Agenda 3




Review, consideration, and possible issuance of final acceptance for the WRF
Emergency Diesel Generator Construction Project, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The project is complete. There were two change orders for the project totaling
$30,800.00. Change order #1 was for providing and installing 600 linear feet of 250
MCM copper wire in the amount of $6600.00. Change order #2 was for enlarging
the concrete pad. This cost was $24,200.00 and Smith Power Products paid for the
costs assoctated with this change order. RL

Review and possible selection of an engineering firm to provide services at the Elko
Regional Airport, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The current Professional Service Agreement for engineering services at the airport
expired January 14, 2019.

The airport for the next five-year (5) period as required under FAA Advisory
Circular 150/5100-14 series. The Airport selection committee held interviews on
Janvary 29, 2019 and interviewed two (2) engineering firms: Armstrong
Consultants, Inc., and JViation Engineering. The selection committee recommends
that the Council select JViation Engineering for the next five (5) year engineering
service contract. Upon selection, Staff will negotiate a Professional Services
Agreement with the successful firm. This new agreement will be brought back to
Councitl for review and approval. JF

V. SUBDIVISIONS

A.

Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat No.
12-18, filed by DDS Properties LLC., for the development of a subdivision entitled
Humboldt Hills involving the proposed division of approximately 9.443 acres of
property into 26 lots for residential development within the R1 (Single Family
Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Subject property is located east of Jennings Way approximately 120’ north of
Cortney Drive (APN 001-01H-001). Preliminary Plat was recommended to Council
to conditionally approve by Planning Commission July 9, 2018 and conditionally
approved by City Council July 24, 2018. The Planning Commission considered this
item on November 6, 2018 and took action to forward a recommendation to City
Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 12-18. CL

V1. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

02/12/2019

Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat No.
11-18, filed by Parrado Partners LP., for the development of a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately
9.650 acres of property into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single

City Council Agenda 4




Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Subject property is located generally northeast of Flagstone Drive between Opal
Drive and Clarkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat was recommended
to Council to conditionally approve by Planning Commission May 3, 2016 and
conditionally approved by Council May 24, 2016. The Planning Commission
considered this item on September 6, 2018, and took action to forward a
recommendation to Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 11-18. CL

Title: Review, consideration, and possible issuance of a permanent Certificate of
Occupancy for the property located at 537 South 5™ Street, owned by Mr. John
Dagley, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City issued a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy dated October 7, 1993 for a
structure located at 537 South 5™ Street. The Temporary Certificate of Occupancy
was issued for a period of 180 days and cited three conditions to be satisfied before
a final inspection could be completed. The first condition required completion of
the final grade which based on the City approved grading plan. The grading plan
showed drainage away from the structure to the South Fifth Street right-of-way.
That condition has not been addressed. The City Council considered the request for
a permanent Certificate of Occupancy on October 11, 2016 and directed staff to
seek solutions for the drainage issues associated with 537 S. 5" Street and hopefully
engage neighbors in the area and be able to come up with a solution that can be
presented to the board. The Building Official and the Assistant City Manager
inspected the site with Mr. Dagley on June 12, 2018. Based on the information
presented by Mr. Dagley and the site inspection, no apparent solutions were
identified. Mr. Dagley met with the Assistant City Manager on February 4, 2019
and provided his files for review. The Assistant City Manager identified a potential
solution which requires drainage into the sanitary sewer. The Assistant City
Manager discussed the possibility with the Utilities Director and determined the
potential solution could be presented to Mr. Dagley. The Assistant City Manager
met with Mr. Dagley on February 5, 2019, discussed the potential solution, and
informed Mr. Dagley that he would need to engage the appropriate design
professional to fully evaluate and design the drainage solution. SW

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A.

02/12/2019

Review, consideration, and possible approval of an Agreement to Install
Improvements and Performance/Maintenance Guarantees for subdivision
improvements associated with the Humboldt Hills subdivision, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, included stipulations on the timeframe for when those
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance guarantee in
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-22. The Planning Commission recommended

City Council Agenda 5




02/12/2019

as one of the conditions for approval of the final plat, that the agreement shall be
approved by the City Council.

The Planning Commission also recommended that the Developer shall enter into
the agreement within 30 days of the City Council’s approval of the final plat. SAW

Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2018 Annual Report of
Planning Commission Activities, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning Commission is required to
prepare and present an Annual Report of its activities to Council. On February 5,
2019, the Planning Commission took action to approve the 2018 Annual Report of
Planning Commission Activities, and forward it to the Council. CL

Review, consideration, and possible approval of an Agreement to Install
Improvements and Performance/Maintenance Guarantees for subdivision
improvements associated with the Great Basin Estates Phase 3 subdivision, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, included stipulations on the timeframe for when those
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance guarantee in
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-22. The Planning Commission recommended
as one of the conditions for approval of the final plat, that the agreement shall be
approved by the City Council.

The Planning Commission also recommended that the Developer shall enter into
the agreement within 30 days of the City Council’s approval of the final plat. CL

Review, consideration, and possible action to fill a vacancy on the Elko City
Planning Commission, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On January 8, 2019, Council accepted a letter of resignation from Planning
Commission member David Freistroffer. Staff conducted the standard recruitment
process and has received 2 letters of interest to serve on the Planning Commission,
copies of which are included in the Council packet. The new member will be
appointed to fill the remainder of the four-year term, which will expire at the end
of July 2021. CL

Review, consideration, and possible adoption of the updated City of Elko
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan, and matters related

thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City of Elko’s current plan, dated April, 1993, was extremely outdated and
needed to be updated. The Nevada Department of Transportation’s ADA

City Council Agenda 6



Coordinator reached out to the City inquiring about the City’s transition plan and
offered guidance from NDOT in an effort to update our plan. DS

Review, consideration, and approval of the 2019 City of Elko Land Inventory
update, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City of Elko Land Inventory spreadsheet is to be updated when necessary. Planning
Commission reviewed the modifications at their February 5, 2019 meeting and
recommended to City Council to approve the updated land inventory. CL

Review, consideration, and possible approval of authorization for Staff to initiate
the acquisition of .841 acres of real property from Barry W. and Lynn M. Lipparelli
Trust for the amount of $38,500, the appraised value of the property stated in the
appraisal of Jason Buckholz of CRBE Inc., for the creation of the Cattle Drive and
Tamarak Road Rights-of-Way, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

City Staff supports the acquisition of a portion of APN 006-09B-087 and 006-09B-
088 for the creation of the Cattle Drive and Tamarak Road Rights-of-Way. SAW

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Hangar (E-3) Lease Agreement
with James D. Boyer, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

James D. Boyer assumed a Lease Assumption of Hangar E-3 from Ed and Sharon
Netherton on November 1, 2015. The Lease Assumption expired February 28,
2018 and a new Lease Agreement needs to be completed with Mr. Boyer.
Additionally, airport ground leases of less than one-half an acre are no longer
subject to appraisal/auction process for cities whose population is less than 25,000
(NRS 496.80) JF

VIII. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

A.

02/12/2019

Review, consideration, and possible action to approve Curb, Gutter, and Sidewalk
Waiver No. 1-19, filed by Medallus Urgent Care, which waives the requirement for
curb and gutter on the north side of Lamoille Highway abutting APN 001-750-016,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Per Elko City Code Section 2-13-3, public improvements are required on developed
lots or parcels of land involve a change in building occupancy and use of land. The
applicant has recently leased the property which was vacant for more than 12
months and lost all legal non-conforming status. NDOT has reviewed the need for
curb and gutter at this location and has determined that it is not needed to control
drainage in this area. Staff recommends approval of the waiver for curb and gutter
with sidewalk still being required. CL

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a variance, related to the expansion
of an existing facility located at 1225 Water Street, from Section 3-8-6 of the Elko

City Council Agenda 7




City Code which stipulates a lowest floor elevation requirement of two feet above
the base flood elevation, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The property owner is proposing an expansion of the existing facility located at
1225 Water Street. The owner’s engineer has filed a variance request allowing for
a lower floor elevation of 1.85 feet above base flood elevation for both the existing
structure and the expansion area. The variance request of 0.15 less than the required
two feet above base flood elevation stipulated in the code. The basis for the request
is to match the existing floor elevation which was approved for construction under
different guidelines in effect at the time of development. Additionally, City Code
is more restrictive that the FEMA requirement of one foot over base flood elevation.
SAW

Review, consideration, and possible action concerning a Letter of Protest by current
property owners concerning the fence height related to the development of the
storage facility located at the intersection of 12% Street and Opal Drive, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City received a letter of protest on January 22, 2019. The letter of protest is
dated January 18, 2019 and relates to the height of the screen wall constructed on
the abutting commercial development, which is a storage unit facility. The reason
for the complaint is that the constructed screen wall blocks the complainants’ views
and thus affects their home values.

Conditional Use Permit 3-17 for the development was approved by the Planning
Commission on July 18, 2017. Condition 10 of the approval required construction
of the screen wall as shown on the plans. The plans show a screen wall with a
minimum height of eight feet, six inches and a maximum height of nine feet, six-
and one-half inches. The plans identified a solid concrete masonry unit (CMU) wall
with a natural concrete finish. The developer has installed a solid precast wall
approximately eight feet in height on the 12" Street and Opal Drive frontages.

Pursuant to City Code Section 3-2-18(E), the Planning Commission makes the final
determination on conditional use permits, subject to the right of appeal as set forth
in Section 3-2-25. However, in this case, there was no appeal of the conditional
use permit and the time limit of ten (10) calendar days after the decision for filing
an appeal with the City Clerk, required by Section 3-2-25(A) of the City Code, has
expired. SAW

IX. S5:30P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A.

02/12/2019

Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 1-19, a
resolution and order vacating 5’ of the existing 10’ public utility and drainage
easement along the southwesterly lot line of parcel referred to as APN 001-61J-
028, filed and processed as Vacation No. 4-18 filed by Koinonia Construction, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City Council Agenda 8



Council accepted a petition for the subject vacation at its regular meeting of
December 18, 2018, and directed Staff to continue with the vacation process by
referring the matter to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission
considered the vacation at its special meeting January 3, 2019, and took action to
forward a recommendation to Council to adopt a resolution, which conditionally
approves Vacation No. 4-18 with findings in support of its recommendation. CL

B. Review and consideration of submitted data and/or arguments and determination as
to whether the proposed ORDINANCE NO. 835: AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING TITLE 8, CHAPTER 2, OF THE ELKO CITY CODE
ENTITLED “CONDITIONS OF UTILITY OCCUPANCY OF PUBLIC
ROADS AND CITY STREET CUTS AND REPAIRS” BY ADDING SMART
DIG REQUIREMENTS, AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO will
impose a direct and significant burden upon a business or directly restrict the
formation, operation, or expansion of a business, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
Pursuant to NRS 237.080 the City of Elko notified owners and officers of
businesses which may be affected by the ordinance. Staff has prepared a Business
Impact Statement for Ordinance No. 835.

On August 28, 2018, Council approved initiation of Ordinance No. 835, and
directed Staff to prepare a business impact statement. Pursuant to NRS 237.090, a
Business Impact Statement has been prepared and must be considered by the City
Council prior to the public hearing, and adoption of the ordinance. KW

X. REPORTS

A. Mayor and City Council

B. City Manager - Legislative Report

C. Assistant City Manager - 403 Pine Street

D. Utilities Director

E. Public Works

F. Airport Manager - Airport Operations, Part 139 Inspection

G. City Attorney

H. Fire Chief

L. Police Chief

J. City Clerk

K. City Planner

L. Development Manager

M. Administrative Services Director

N. Parks and Recreation Director — Report Swimming Pool Repair

O. Civil Engineer - Sports Complex

P. Building Official

02/12/2019 City Council Agenda 9



COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

NOTE: The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time.
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an
item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

Curtis Calder
City Manager

02/12/2019 City Council Agenda 10



City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada ) SS January 22, 2018

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of ‘Nevada met for a regular meeting
beginning at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 22, 2018.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Reece Keener.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

Mayor Present: Reece Keener

Council Present: Councilwoman Mandy Simons

Councilman Schmidtlein
Councilman Chip Stone
Councilman Bill Hance

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Suzie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager
Jeff Ford, Building Official
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager
Matt Griego, Fire Chief
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief
Ben Reed Jr., Police Chief
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director
Jim Foster, Airport Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Dave Stanton, City Attorney
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda

until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as an
item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 14



Mayor Keener stated this was the first time the full board was in attendance. There were no
public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES January 8, 2019 Special Session
January 8, 2019 Regular Session

*k A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
approve the minutes.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

L. PRESENTATIONS

A. Presentation of an appreciation plaque to former Planning Commissioner David
Freistroffer, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ITEM ONLY - NON
ACTION ITEM

Mayor Keener spoke a few words about Mr. Freistroffer’s service and presented him with a
plaque.

David Freistroffer said he enjoyed his time on the board.
IL. PERSONNEL
A. Employee Introductions:

1.) Taylor Brune, Patrol Officer I, Police Department
Present and introduced.

B. Election of Mayor Pro Tempore, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Mayor Keener stated that Councilman Rice was the Mayor Pro Tempore for many years.

*x A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
nominate Councilman Robert Schmidtlein as the Mayor Pro Tempore.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
IV.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat No.
11-18, filed by Parrado Partners LP., for the development of a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately
9.650 acres of property into 38 lots for residential development within the R
(Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 14




Subject property is located generally northeast of Flagstone Drive between Opal
Drive and Clarkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat was
recommended to Council to conditionally approve by Planning Commission May
3, 2016 and conditionally approved by Council May 24, 2016. The Planning
Commission considered this item on September 6, 2018, and took action to

forward a recommendation to Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 11-18.
CL

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, requested this be tabled.

*x A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to
table.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

Councilman Schmidtlein pointed out that the cease and desist order was removed from Phase 2.
It is moving in the right direction.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, said the order was lifted for Phase 2. The map has
been recorded so there are lots of record. Mr. Capps is working with his engineer of record to
provide additional information on the utility install on Phase 3 to hopefully alleviate any
concerns they may have during their review of those plans. He expects that to take another
month or two more months.

V. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a request from the Department of
Veterans Affairs (VA) for the City to agree to provide water service to a parcel
located in the County to be used as a National Cemetery for Veterans, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject parcel is located at the intersection of Cattle Drive and Western Way.
The City is currently unable to serve this property as it is located at an elevation
higher than that of the water tanks. Department of Veterans Affairs has requested
City Council review and approval of the following terms and conditions:

1. VA is requesting that the City design and construct a dedicated 4”
waterline (approximately 2600 lineal feet through existing Right of Way
or public easements), and a booster pump station capable of pumping 200
gpm. (These plans will need to be submitted to the City, and Nevada
Department of Environmental Protection (NDEP) for approval or redline
comments prior to construction).

2. VA will fund the costs for the design and construction associated with this
waterline, subject to appropriations limitations including but not limited to
the requirements of the Antideficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. §1341 et seq.

3. VA respectfully requests City waiver of waterline connection fees, given
the positive benefit to the community through the development of the
BLM property to serve our nations veterans. VA also requests to pay the
standard City rate for water service in lieu of 1.5x the City rate

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 3 of 14




The water rate at this County parcel would be 1.5x the City rate for water service,
per Elko City Code section 9-1-25 (B). RL

Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director, said the three terms are the three items that the VA is
requesting of the City. He pointed out that although the VA is asking the City to design and
build the waterline, they are willing to reimburse the City. He wasn’t sure if the 1.5x rate can be
waived and would have the City Attorney speak about it. He indicated the area on the overhead
screen. They are asking the City to design and construct the waterline because according to
federal law they are not allowed to perform improvements to property that the federal
government doesn’t own.

Mayor Keener asked as far as the design goes, can that be done in-house.

Mr. Limberg answered they typically outsource projects because of workload.

Mayor Keener wondered why they don’t put a well on that property.

Mr. Limberg answered he was told that wasn’t something the VA was interested in doing. They
did a study on the feasibility of putting a well in themselves and it would be too deep and costly.

Councilwoman Simons asked if this parcel can be annexed?

Mr. Limberg answered not at this time.

Councilman Stone asked who would be responsible for the pump station maintenance.

Mr. Limberg answered the City would. This area would be just seasonal use and would not be
running all of the time. The maintenance comes out of our operating budget. The fees the VA
would pay would go back into that budget.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked what their estimated cost would be to drill a well.

Mr. Limberg answered he was not given that information. The wells in this area are domestic. If
you drill a larger well and impact the adjacent wells, you will have to remedy the impact to those

adjacent to you.

Mayor Kenner asked for a 4-inch water line, 2,600 lineal feet, he assumes that would trigger
public work requirements.

Mr. Limberg thought that would actually come in under.

Councilman Schmidtlein thought they may be looking at $300,000 total cost with the
engineering, pump station and bringing in the power included.

Mr. Limberg admitted they haven’t scrubbed the hard numbers. The VA has volunteered to pick
up the actual expenses.

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 4 of 14




Mayor Keener asked what would the connection fee be for something like that.

Mr. Limberg said they don’t have the sq. footage of what they want to irrigate yet so he couldn’t
answer that question.

Mayor Keener said this is out in the county. What are they asking of the county?

Mr. Limberg answered he doesn’t know because the county doesn’t have any water system in the
area.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, said met with BLM representatives, VA
representatives and the county. They looked at several different sites. Some might be better than
this. At that meeting the county indicated that they had no assistance to offer.

Mr. Limberg said the Heller Land Transfer bill has not been approved. The VA believes it will
happen. They would like to have an agreement before the transfer is acquired.

Mayor Keener thought the board supports this but they need to find the right way to do it. The
regular city rate could be problematic.

Dave Stanton said from time to time, people come to Council and ask for fee waivers. You have
to be very cautious with that. In order to have the authority to grant a waiver, there needs to be
criteria set out in code so the waivers don’t result in the fees being imposed on an ad hoc basis.
Fees cannot be imposed just on who comes in and makes the best pitch. That leads to
discriminatory actions. The Council has the ability to amend the code. If the Council wanted to
create a provision for waiving fees or rates, something could be crafted to ensure that is
uniformly applied. As matters stand right now, request #3, the authority is not there to grant it.

Councilman Stone wanted to thank all the veterans that were present. He would like to make this
happen within the guidelines the City has.

Mayor Keener called for public comment.

Mike Musgrove, 666 Thistle Lane, Spring Creek, explained the original intent was to use 3-5
acres in an existing cemetery. He doesn’t see any more than 3 — 5 acres being developed. He
thinks this is needed. The only veteran cemeteries are in Boulder City and Fernley, and they are
State cemeteries, not federal. He hopes this can be worked out.

Gil Hernandez, 1316 7" Street, Elko, congratulated the new Council on their positions. They
have pushed hard for a national cemetery. This would be the only national cemetery in the state.
He is surprised the county hasn’t offered any support. The demand isn’t just for the City
residents. He thought the City had the authority to waive the fees. The City Veteran Cemetery is
filling up fast and won’t last very long.

Mayor Keener said he knows the city has mapped out a couple of areas for future cemeteries.
How long will our cemetery last?

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 5 of 14




James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, answered it is hard to pin that down but when we
acquired the lots from the Odd Fellows/Masons, we gained a lot of plots and time. The veteran
section of the cemetery is getting very tight. A few years ago, we dedicated property at the top
of Eight Mile Creek as future cemetery and the VA was considering the area for co-locating. For
some reason the VA moved on to other areas.

Curtis Calder stated when he spoke to the VA a few years ago, we talked about a co-located
facility and taking advantage of the existing infrastructure necessary to develop that into a
cemetery. We never told them we would require them to purchase City property. When you
look at the long-term viability, the City land was a better area. Maybe the county will step up
and develop the road system. If you are going to have a national cemetery, at least have a decent
road to it. The agreement will be a complex agreement for the waterline and booster station
considering it will be a federal agreement.

Mr. Hernandez wanted this to work. The City can consider placing a cemetery at the County
location in the future. Washington DC works really slow and he has worked hard to get this far
with them. With the shutdown, who knows where we are. He is sure this will benefit everyone.

Mike Musgrove said the two state cemeteries were opened in 1990. The one in Boulder City has
over 43,000 veterans and spouses buried there. The one in Fernley, which is smaller, has almost
11,000 veterans and spouses buried there.

Mayor Keener thought the Elko cemetery would get a lot of usage. He closed public comment.
He thought everyone wanted to make this happen. We also need to be smart about it. The
veterans have paid for this and it is owed to them. He would like to point out that the City has a
better location and land that can be dedicated to the VA for a cemetery.

Councilman Hance agreed that we do need a VA cemetery. There will be additional cost for the
water. He doesn’t think there will be a waiver to any costs. He agreed with Mr. Calder that the
other property needs to be looked at more. Going forward with what the VA requests, we would
have to consider the cost of power and long-term maintenance. He asked Mr. Limberg if we
have the capacity to offer the water that would be requested.

Mr. Limberg answered he didn’t know the exact number but we do have over 1000 gallons per
minute capacity available. The Heller Bill that is up for consideration has this particular parcel
identified. If another parcel is identified the process would have to start over.

Councilwoman Simons said she hates waivers and wonders if the county would be willing to pay
the .5 of the 1.5 water rate for users outside the city? This needs to happen.

Mr. Limberg said this is the VA’s request. He doesn’t get the feeling that not granting the
waivers or the water rate is something that is going to kill the project. That is probably
something they would concede to. The real question is whether or not we can get water there.

*x A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, to approve a request from the

Department of Veteran’s Affairs, for the City to agree to provide water service to a parcel
located in the county to be used as a national cemetery for veterans, and direct staff to offer

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 6 of 14




a possible alternative location, as well as, negotiate the water rate and connection fees in
the future.

The motion died for lack of a second.

Mayor Keener pointed out that this is about this one particular parcel. If that parcel is out of the
play, we go back to ground zero.

Councilwoman Simons asked if the Heller Bill was not just a land acquisition. If we gave them
property they couldn’t develop a cemetery without that bill?

Mr. Limberg said one option would be that the VA could accept the offer of land and let the
legislation die. We have offered other locations that are easier to serve water to. He thought
they liked the view and the site the best.

Mr. Stanton said the other site is beyond the scope of the agenda. The VA is looking for
direction for staff to begin the process of developing an agreement with the VA. It will be
helpful if the motion gave staff some direction on how to deal with requests 1, 2 & 3.
ok A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, to authorize staff to begin
developing an agreement with the VA to provide water service to a national cemetery for
veterans, where the City would design and construct a 4 inch waterline and the VA will
fund the costs for the design and construction, and direct staff to begin negotiations on
water rate and connection fees.

The motion died for lack of a second.

Mr. Stanton wasn’t sure if the City had the authority to negotiate water and connection fees. It is
set forth in code.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Hance,
to approve a request from the Department of Veteran’s Affairs for the City to agree to
provide water service to a parcel located in the county to be used as a national cemetery for
veterans, agreeing to the request of items one and two and deny the request for item
number three, and work with the VA to develop an agreement..

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of an Agreement to Install
Improvements and Performance/Maintenance Guarantees for subdivision
improvements associated with the Great Basin Estates Phase 3 subdivision, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, included stipulations on ~the timeframe for when those
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance guarantee in
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-22. The Planning Commission recommended
as one of the conditions for approval of the final plat, that the agreement shall be
approved by the City Council.

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 7 of 14




The Planning Commission also recommended that the Developer shall enter into
the agreement within 30 days of the City Council’s approval of the final plat. CL

NO ACTION
C. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2019 Planning
Commission Work Program, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

The Planning Commission considered a draft 2019 Work Program at their special
meeting January 3, 2019. They took action to approve the Work Program and
forward it to Council for acceptance. CL

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained this is the annual work program that is presented to
Planning Commission and City Council every year. It outlines items the Planning Commission
are working on. The list was limited to items that she felt they could accomplish in the year.

** A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
accept the 2019 Planning Commission Work Program.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

D. Review, consideration and possible approval of the revised Humanitarian
Campground Rules, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Humanitarian Campground Rules require revision to reflect the current
operating relationship between the City and Friends In Service Helping (F.I.S.H)
and to address certain ongoing issues associated with the operation of the camp.
SAW

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, explained there was a track changes document in the
packet that shows the proposed changes to the rules. He went over some of the changes and

offered to answer questions.

Mayor Keener asked if there was much sleeping in their car. Why not sleep in their cars at
Walmart?

Mr. Wilkinson answered he wasn’t sure why they would go there and sleep in their car.
Recently there has been one individual that refuses to register with FISH and just parks there.

Councilman Stone said he spent some time there on Saturday. There is some cleanup needed
and the vehicles don’t look good. There are some things going on that need to be taken care of.

Mayor Keener asked if there was any public comment.

Councilman Stone pointed out an error, where it says the windbreak shall be no higher than 4.
Does that mean 4 feet?

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 8 of 14




Mr. Wilkinson answered yes, it should state 4 feet.

Councilman Stone stated Sunday he met with Underdog also. He spoke to maybe 10 to 12 folks
and they are very appreciative of the help they get from the organizations. Has there been any
talk about moving that waterline further into the parcel?

Scott answered they are cautious with expenditures but they are looking at two additional
hydrants into the site to make it more user friendly.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
approve the revised Humanitarian Campground rules with the one revision for the height
to be 4 foot.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

VI. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 02-19, a
resolution amending various fees related to Ruby View Golf Course pursuant to
Elko City Code, Title 8, Chapter 13, Section 3 and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Golf Course Financial Advisory Committee took action to recommend
amending various fees at Ruby View Golf Course on December 17, 2018. A draft
resolution has been included in the agenda packet for review. JW

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, explained the proposed changes to the Ruby View
Golf Course fees.

Will Moschetti, Golf Course Financial Advisory Committee, said the City’s accounting system
makes it Brad Martin’s (Golf Pro) responsibility to track the punch cards. He prefers a bar token
system. We started punch cards for Hotel/Motels to offer specials. There is no discount for
seniors to purchase a punch card.

Mr. Wiley pointed out the rates will not be in effect until April so go buy your season pass now.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
adopt Resolution No. 02-19, amending fees charged for Ruby View Golf Course.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
V. NEW BUSINESS (Cont.)

E. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a grant administered by the
Humboldt Watershed Cooperative Weed Management Area (HWCWMA), and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City of Elko is eligible to receive services for noxious weed control at
SnoBowl, undeveloped City Property near Copper Street and Mountain View

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 9 of 14




Park, and along the Humboldt River. The HWCWMA manages the grant and
hires a licensed contractor to perform the work. They are requesting the City of
Elko provides records of expenditures for herbicide treatments throughout the
park system to serve as matching funds towards the grant. JW

Mr. Wiley explained this is an easy grant to work with and this is a big benefit for the City.
They are targeting noxious weeds in undeveloped properties. He is happy to partner with this
group. Last year they sprayed up in the SnoBowl area and they saw great results. It is a $10,000
grant issued to HWCWMA.

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Hance, to work
with Humboldt Watershed Cooperative Weed Management Area to provide noxious weed
control services within the following City owned properties: The Elko SnoBowl, drainages
surrounding Mountain View Park and the Humboldt River.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

F. Review and possible approval of Exhibits A, B and C for the Lease Agreement
between the City of Elko and Elko Leasing Company pertaining to the lease of the
old terminal building, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City Council approved a lease agreement between the City and Elko Leasing
Company on January 8, 2019. The lease agreement included reference to Exhibits
A, B and C. The exhibits require Council approval. JF

Jim Foster, Airport Manager, explained these are the exhibits for the Lease Agreement that was
approved at the last Council meeting.

** A motion was made by Councilman Hance, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein,
to approve Exhibits “A,” “B,” and “C” for the lease agreement between the City of Elko
and Elko Leasing Company pertaining to the lease of the Old Terminal Building.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

G. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a request from Special Olympics
Nevada to close a portion of the parking located within the Elko City Park for the
Polar Plunge, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Due to the closure of the Elko City Pool, the Special Olympics is seeking
alternative areas to hold the Polar Plunge. They are requesting approval to close a
portion of parking in the Main City Park to put up an inflatable slide and pool for
the plunge. Since it is a request to close city-owned property, approval from the
Council is required. KW

Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk, explained the event is slated to be held March 2, 2019, from 11:00
am to 2:00 pm. They are looking to close the parking lot at the turn-around between the museum
and the park.

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 10 of 14




Councilman Hance asked why they can’t use the outdoor pool.

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, answered they aren’t sure when they would be
starting construction at the pool facility. The pool was closed for safety reasons and we should
probably stick to that. They are fine with that. They do this option at other cities that do not
have a pool and it works.

o A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Hance, to close
the area at the City Main Park for the Special Olympics to have their event there for the
Polar Plunge, with their inflatable pools, as stated, on March 2, 2019.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
VII. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS
A. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation of
a portion of the public utility and drainage easement along the north and east
property lines of APN 001-660-049 consisting of an area approximately 1,300 sq.
ft., filed by MP Elko LLC and processed as Vacation No. 1-19, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The owner is proposing an expansion to the Dotty’s Casino and the proposed
expansion will extend over the existing easement. CL

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained the vacation application.
Councilman Stone disclosed he received campaign funds from Dotty’s Corporate.
Mayor Keener disclosed he received a contribution from MP Financial after the election.
Councilman Hance disclosed he also received a contribution from Dotty’s.
o A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilwoman
Simons, to accept the petition for vacation and direct staff the commence the vacation
process by referring the matter to the Planning Commission.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
B. Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day Temporary Retail Beer and Wine
License and issue a Regular Retail Beer and Wine License, to Janet Pescio, DBA
Performance Athletic Club, located at 3250 Sagecrest Drive, Elko, NV 89801,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Chief Reed explained the application and he is working with the business regarding managing
the service. He recommended approval.

*k A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
ratify the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary retail beer and wine license and issue a

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 11 of 14




Regular Retail Beer and Wine License to Janet Pescio, dba Performance Athletic Club,
located at 3250 Sagecrest Drive, Elko, Nevada.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
III. APPROPRIATIONS

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Hance,
to approve the general warrants.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

VIII. REPORTS

A. Mayor and City Council
Councilman Hance said they are down one in the IT Department and
working on getting another one.
Councilman Stone was at the ECVA Meeting today and they are working
hard at promoting Elko and fixing their heating. He will be replacing Delmo
Andreozzi on the Marketing Committee. The Animal shelter is doing well and
they are asking for some things to be added to their budget. He said thank
you to Law Enforcement and being allowed to go to the awards ceremony.
Mayor Keener attended the awards ceremony too. They are looking at
having another Broadband meeting in February. The Golden Spike 150 Year
Anniversary for Union Pacific Railroad will be this Friday at 1:30 p.m. at the
Western Folklife Center. Councilman Stone stated he will not be able to
attend that event.
B. City Manager
Curtis Calder reminded everyone that the OHV Working Group will be
meeting here on Thursday night at 6:00 p.m. to review the draft ordinance
and get some feedback.
C. Assistant City Manager-Armstrong Public Nuisance Report
Scott Wilkinson reported on the 403 Pine public nuisance. The 14" was
the last day they had to address the issues. He made an inspection on the 15",
About 95% of the solid waste has been removed. One vehicle was removed
and a second was attempted to be removed. It was a fairly favorable response
from the property owner with just the one vehicle to address. He did not see
the City needing to place any liens on the property. Mayor Keener asked if
there has been any input from neighbors. Mr. Wilkinson said he has not
heard from any of the neighbors.
Utilities Director
Public Works
Airport Manager-Airport Operations
Jim Foster updated on the weather conditions. The fog has caused the
loss of 4.5 days of flights. Hopefully, it won’t be much of an issue the rest of
the winter. Mayor Keener asked about the possibility of the FAA funding

MmO

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 12 of 14




Pt

zZg

P.

instrument landing equipment. Mr. Foster explained that is not feasible at
this airport.
City Attorney
Dave Stanton said in terms of the dark fiber lease issue, it looks like we
have one maybe two appraisers that could appraise this property. Mayor
Keener asked if Council will have to approve moving forward with the
appraisal. Curtis Calder said typically we are dealing with a parcel of land
but this is unique. They will have to follow-up with the appraisers later this
week. If it needs approval, it will be on the next agenda.
Fire Chief
Police Chief
Chief Reed reported there has been a recent series of commercial
burglaries. There was a tragic incident at the high school that left one student
in the hospital. The swearing in ceremony will be tomorrow morning, 10:00
a.m., at the Police Station. He thanked everyone for coming to the awards
ceremony.
City Clerk
Kelly Wooldridge reminded Council about photos on February 12, 2019
at 3:00 p.m.
City Planner
There will be an RAC meeting Thursday at 4p.m.
Development Manager
Administrative Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director-Swimming Pool Repair Bid Update
James Wiley reported the engineering firm has submitted their drawings
and the bid packet is about ready. Their goal is to have the bid out sometime
next week. They hope to have a recommendation for a bid award at the
February 22 Council Meeting. With what they know today, they are looking
at project completion date of June 15. The SnoBowl! has been a lot of work
and a lot of fun. They have been open for the last 4 weekends. They plan to
open again this weekend.
Civil Engineer -Sports Complex Update
Bob Thibault reported on the Sports Complex progress. Not much is
happening there due to the weather. The City crews were able to get in the
footings for the scoreboards.
Building Official

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

01/22/2019

There were no public comments.

City Council Minutes Page 13 of 14




There being no further business, Mayor Reece Keener adjourned the meeting.

Mayor Reece Keener Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk

01/22/2019 City Council Minutes Page 14 of 14




Agenda Item ILA.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review and possible designation of an independent auditor to prepare the
annual audit for the City of Elko for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019, pursuant to
NRS 354.624, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: February 12, 2019

Agenda Category: CONSENT AGENDA

Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information: Each year the City is required to designate an independent
auditor prior to March 31 of the year in which the audit is to be conducted. The City
put out Requests for Proposals for auditing services for a period of five years on

March 2016, and awarded the RFP to HintonBurdick, PLLC. JJ

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: $60,000.00
Budget amount available: $60,000.00
Fund name: General Fund
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information:
Recommended Motion: Approve HintonBurdick, PLLC as the City of Elko’s
independent auditors for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 in an amount not to
exceed $60,000.
Prepared By: Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Michael K. Spilker, Hinton Burdick, PLLC
Email: mspilker @hintonburdick.com

Created on 02/04/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1




Agenda Item IL.B.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible adoption of current FEMA’s Schedule of
Equipment Rates for City of Elko Equipment Charge Outs, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: February 12,2019

Agenda Category: CONSENT AGENDA

Time Required: S Minutes

Background Information: The City of Elko has not updated its Equipment Rate
Schedule since June of 2005. In order to facilitate charge outs for reimbursement for
equipment utilized by the City of Elko in the event of an incident of accident
requiring our assistance the City needs rate schedules to charge for the equipment
used in the incident. FEMA has a very extensive Equipment Rate Schedule which
they update periodically. DS

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Copy of the current City of Elko Equipment Rate
Schedule and a copy of the current edition of FEMA’s Schedule of Equipment
Rates.

Recommended Motion: Adopt the use of the most current edition of FEMA’s
Schedule of Equipment Rates.

Prepared By: Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/17/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1















































































Agenda Item IL.D.

10.
11.
12.

13,

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible acceptance of a Deed of Dedication
(requested by the City) from the Elko County School District to the City of Elko for
a permanent non-exclusive Right of Way, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: February 12, 2019
Agenda Category: CONSENT AGENDA
Time Required: 2 Minutes
Background Information: The purpose of this right of way is to allow the City a
location to run a future water line connecting North 5% Street to BLM property
where this water line would continue on to a future tank site. RL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available:

Fund name:
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Deed of Dedication, Exhibit A, Exhibit B
Recommended Motion: Move to accept Deed of Dedication
Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/30/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10of 1




APN 006-09L-001

When Recorded, Mail To:
City of Elko

1751 College Avenue
Elko, Nevada 89801

DEED OF DEDICATION

THIS INDENTURE, made and entered into between the ELKO COUNTY
SCHOOL DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, Grantor, and the

CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, Grantee.

That the Grantor, for valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, does hereby dedicate to the Grantee a permanent non-exclusive right-of-
way, over, across, upon, under and through that portion of the Grantor’s property situate
within the City of Elko, County of Elko, State of Nevada, set forth in the description
attached hereto at Exhibit A and depicted on the map attached hereto at Exhibit B, to
construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain, and remove a waterline, and other associated

equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements, together with a right of access for the
aforementioned purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this indenture to be executed
this_ A9 day of :ﬁwmg ,2019.

GRANTOR:

ELKO COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

By: 4/ @
¢/

Page 1 of 2




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF ELKO )

On this2? _dgy of \;éﬂ 7 , 20 1? personally appeared before me,
a Notary Public, %eﬁ 2L , who acknowledged
that he executed the abov€ instrumertt.

ARY LIC
Mail tax statement to:

. KELLY MARTIN
City of Elko NOTARY PUBLIC- STATE of NEVADA
1751 College Avenue T E‘_‘r«:: %i\l{rnéy# 398\3,?2246

7/ CERTI -
Elko, Nevada 89801 7 APPT.EXP.AUG. 04,2019

Page 2 of 2




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR A UTILITY EASEMENT

An 20’ wide strip of land within the south half of Section S, Township 34 North, Range 55 East,
M.D.B.&M. which lies along the southerly boundary of Parcel No. 1 of the Parcel Map for Nevada Land &
Resource Company, recarded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 384998 further
described as follows;

Beginning at the southwest corner of sald Parcel 1 of file no. 384998;

Thence, along the westerly boundary of said Section S, Township 34 North, Range 55 East North
1°20'03" West, a distance of 20.00 feet;

Thence, North 88°39'57 East, a distance of 3,024.60 feet, more or less, to the right-of-way of Elko
County Road #741, as dedicated per said file no. 384998;

Thence, along said right-of-way of Elko County Road #741, along a non-tangent curve to the right, from a
tangent bearing South 50°48’20" East, with a radius of 2,960.00 feet, an arc length of 30.59 feet, and a
central angle of 0°35’32”, more or less, to the southeasterly corner of said Parcel 1 of file no. 384998;

Thence, along the sautherly boundary of said Parcel 1 of file no. 384998, South 88°39'57" West, a
distance of 3,047.75 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning.

This easement contains a total of 60,724 square feet.

The Basis of bearings for this description is the Parcel Map for Nevada Land & Resource Company,
recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 384998, on May 8, 1996.

Description prepared by:
Robert Thibault, PE, PLS
Civil Engineer for the City of Elko




—-500’ 0 500’ 1000’

N - ; NORTHWEST CORNER S 5, T 34 N, R 55 £

RECORD POSITION PER FILE NO. 384998

705.78

98.35' NORTH § CORNER S 5, T 34 N, R 55 E
. RECORD POSITION PER FILE NO. 384998

2893.12°

= 80' WIDE RIGHT—OF —WAY
) FOR ELKO COUNTY ROAD #741
o PER FILE NO. 384998
8 ALSC KNOWN AS NORTH 5TH STREET
—lo
Zlo
0
©
o
™ PARCEL 1
FILE NO. 384998
PARCEL 2
L=340.23", R=4960.00’ FILE NO. 384998
WEST } CORNER S 5, T 34 N, R 55 E A=003"55"49"
RECORD POSITION PER FILE NO. 384998
N S51'50'10"E
N1 20 03 W 865.06’
186.14
4

|

3047.75’ SB8'39'57"W
L=83.84', R=2960.00'

20’ WIDE A=001'37"22"
UTILITY EASEMENT

"~ SOUTHWEST CORNER S 5, T 34 N, R 55 E
VRECORD POSITION PER FILE NO. 384998

~ N1"20'03"W
2748.871°

DRAWN 8Y
* 775-177-7210

Vert UTILITY EASEMENT ACAD 2017

CHECKED BY
- | I

e — DISPLAY MAP oate

CY OF ELKO 'QQAL'E DESIGNED BY
@@; S e [HORZ____ EXHIBIT B BT

11/21/201




Agenda Item ILE.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a list of appraisers
recommended by the City Manager for purposes of conducting appraisals during
the 2019 calendar year, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: February 12, 2019

3. Agenda Category: CONSENT AGENDA

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes

5. Background Information: Elko City Code Section 8-1-1 requires the City Manager or
designee to compile and to submit a list of appraisers qualified to conduct business
in the City of Elko to the City Council on or about January 1% of each year. The
Planning Department has developed a list of qualified appraisers interested in
conducting business with the City of Elko and the City Manager has approved the
list. CL

6. Budget Information:

i. Appropriation Required: NA
ii. Budget amount available: NA
ili. Fund name: NA

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Planning Department memo dated January 30,
2019 and email response dated February 4, 2019 from the City Manager.

9. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the appraiser list as recommended by the
Planning Department to the City Manager

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
11. Committee/Other Agency Review: City Manager
12. Council Action:

13. Agenda Distribution:

01/20/2016




Shelby Archuleta

i T A
From: Curtis Calder
Sent: Monday, February 4, 2019 2:36 PM
To: Shelby Archuleta
Cc: Cathy Laughlin
Subject: RE: 2019 Appraiser List
Shelby,

| have reviewed the proposed list and have no suggested revisions. | recommend the City Council approve the 2019
Appraiser List.

Thanks for your help!

Curtis

From: Shelby Archuleta

Sent: Monday, February 04, 2019 9:52 AM

To: Curtis Calder <ccalder@elkocitynv.gov>
Cc: Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov>
Subject: 2019 Appraiser List

Curtis,
I have attached the proposed Appraiser List for 2017. Per City Code Section 8-1-1 | need your approval and
recommendation to the City Council to approve the list. If you could please reply with your approval or any changes you
would like to be made.
The following changes have been made from the 2017 List:

- Added: William Kimmel, Daniel Leck, Matthew Lubawy, and Karen Park.

- Removed: Mark Warren, Benjamin Gregg, James Hutchinson, and Paul Bruk.
Thank you!

Ohelby Drchufeta
97&1Mmﬂ, Sechnician
Cuty of Etho
Planning Department
Pr (775) T77-7160
§X (775) 7777219




CITY OF E LKO Website: www.elkocity.com

Pla n n i ng De pa rtme nt Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7119

Memorandum

To:  Curtis Calder, City Manager
From: Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician
Re: 2019 Appraiser List

Date: February 4, 2019

The following list contains the updated names and contact information of those who are
interested in doing appraisals for the City of Elko.

Lee B. Smith NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000131-CG
1761 East College Parkway, Suite 111

Carson City, NV 89706

(775) 883-8008

soxrealty@sbcglobal.net

John S. Wright NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000191-CG
1344 Disc Drive #460

Sparks, NV 89436

(775) 626-3993

john@jswanv.com

Scott Q. Griffin NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0003504-CG
245 E. Liberty Street, Suite 100

Reno, NV 89501

(775) 322-1155

sqg@jpgnv.com

Lyn C. Norberg NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000268-CG
1761 East College Parkway, Suite 111

Carson City, NV 89706

(775) 883-6655

NV1761@aol.com

Page 1 of3



Jason Buckholz

6900 S. McCarran Boulevard, Suite 3000
Reno, NV 89509

(775) 823-6931
jason.buckholz@cbre.com

Julie C. Ott

6170 Ridgeview Court #E
Reno, NV 89519

(775) 827-4550 ext. 101
jco@coa.reno.nv.us

Tony Wren

P.O. Box 20867

Reno, Nevada 89515
(775) 329-4221
twrenmaisra@aol.com

Kurt L. Hardung
PO Box 19182
Reno, NV 89511
(775) 322-9977
klhardung(@att.net

Samuel K. Ward

106 E. Adams Street #212
Carson City, NV 89706
(775) 885-8822
sward(@skwrea.com

Joseph S. Campbell

PO Box 21453

Reno, NV 89515

(775) 786-7650
joe(@appraisal.reno.nv.us

Robert E. Schiffmacher
12255 Stoney Brook Drive
Reno, NV 89511

(775) 686-2622
rschiffmacher. ws@gmail.com

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0007369-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000748-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000090-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000033-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000123-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000019-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0002492-CG




William G. Kimmel
1281 Terminal Way #205
Reno, NV 89502

(775) 323-6400
william.kimmel@att.net

Daniel A. Leck

408 W. 4% Street
Carson City, NV 89703
(775) 882-8999
dleck64978@aol.com

Karen Park

6492 S McCarran Blvd., #51

Reno, NV 89509
(702) 242-9369
kpark@valbridge.com

Matthew Lubawy

3034 S. Durango Dr. #100
Las Vegas, NV 89117
(702) 242-9369
mlubawy(@valbridge.com

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A.0000004-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A. 0000043-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A. 0207475-CG

NV Cert. Gen. Appraiser No. A. 0000044-CG




Agenda Item IILA.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Mayoral designation of City Council members to specific “Liaison” positions
within the City of Elko, and matters related thereto. NO ACTION BY THE
COUNCIL REQUIRED

Meeting Date: February 12, 2019

Agenda Category: PERSONNEL

Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information: Designation of a Council member to the Arts and Culture
Advisory Board. CC

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information:
Recommended Motion: Mayoral Designation — No Action by Council
Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 2/7/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1



Agenda Item IIL.D.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible direction to Staff to solicit bids for the
East Secondary Clarifier Rehabilitation Project-2019, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: February 12, 2019
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: 3 Minutes
Background Information: This is a maintenance project budgeted for in the current
year budget. The work consists of sandblasting and repainting all metal surfaces
above and below the waterline of the clarifier with 3 or 4 coats of paint, respectively.
Additionally, any damaged components noticed will be repaired during this time
while the clarifier is drained of water. RL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: $81,500.00

Fund name: WRF
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information:

Recommended Motion: Direct Staff to solicit bids for the East Secondary Clarifier
Rehabilitation Project-2019.

Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/17/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1




Agenda Item IILE.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

l. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to retain the law firm of Taggart
and Taggart, Ltd. to represent the City of Elko in pending litigation brought by the
Pershing County Water Conservation District against the Nevada Division of Water
Resources, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: February 12, 2019
3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
4. Time Required: 7 Minutes

5. Background Information: On August 12, 2015, Pershing County Water Conservation
District (PCWCD), which is principally composed of agricultural interests owning
water rights in the Lovelock area, filed a petition in the 11*" Judicial District Court
(Pershing County) asking the court to require the State Engineer to make a number
of decisions potentially having significant adverse impacts on water rights
throughout the Humboldt River Basin.

If the court grants the relief requested by PCWCD, curtailment of ground water
pumping could be required in the Elko Segment of the Humboldt River Basin. This
and other matters before the court could significantly hamper the City’s ability to
utilize its water rights, with consequential impacts on growth and economic
development.

Both Newmont and Barrick have filed motions to intervene.

Staff believes that the City of Elko is an interested and affected party in this matter
and has an interest in the outcome of the PCWCD litigation in Pershing County. By
intervening in the litigation, the City of Elko would have the opportunity to protect
its water rights through the legal process.

The law firm of Taggart and Taggart, Ltd. specializes in water rights litigation and
is currently representing at least one other party seeking to intervene in the lawsuit.
The law firm has indicated that it could also represent the City without a conflict of
interest. There would be an economic benefit to using the same law firm to
represent one or more similarly-situated parties in the litigation. RL

6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: $5,000.00-$15,000.00

Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: WATER

Created on 01/24/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 2




Agenda Item IILE.

7.

8.

9.

10.

1.

12.

13.

Business Impact Statement:

Supplemental Agenda Information: Proposal from Taggart & Taggart, Ltd.
Recommended Motion: Direct Staff to sign a Legal Services Agreement retaining the
law firm of Taggart and Taggart, Ltd. to represent the City in the pending litigation
between PCWCD and the Division of Water Resources, which representation would
include filing a motion to intervene on the City’s behalf.

Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director

Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/24/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 2 of 2




[y

o

LI
SCHROEDER LAW OFFICES, P.C. g E D
Laura A. Schroeder, NSB #3595 %
Therese A. Ure, NSB #10255 JIGROY -2 AH 9: 1)
440 Marsh Ave. Vet e
Reno, Nevada 89509-1515 Dl T T e K ES
PHONE: (775) 786-8800, FAX: (877) 600-4971 Vs Uy
counsel@water-law.com BY:
Attorneys for PCWCD

Affirmation: This document does
not contain the social security
number of any person.

IN THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PERSHING

O 0 3 N s W N

b
—_— O

PERSHING COUNTY WATER Case No. CV 15-12019
CONSERVATION DISTRICT,

—
N

Department No. 01

NOTICE OF MOTION

V. and

MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND
JASON KING, P.E,, State Engineer of the PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS,
State of Nevada, DIVISION OF WATER OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT OF
RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF PROHIBITION

CONSERVATION AND NATURAL
RESOURCES,

o
W

Petitioner,

e e o -
W N N

Respondent.

111
/11
11
/11
11
111
2|l 117

NN NN NN
v E W N == O O

Page 1- NOTICE OF MOTION and MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND PETITION FOR WRIT OF
MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
Jf SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
Z N

LAW OFFICES, P C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971
{PO329922. 0243.19 MIC )




O 0 N & W A W N e

[ T O T S I & I R e T = L O R S N e
ggWNv—O\OW\IO\thNFﬂO

26

NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: Justina A. Caviglia

Nevada Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, NV 89701

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned brings the above and foregoing
MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN
THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT OF PROHIBITION for determination by the Court. A hearing
on this motion is not requested.

MOTION

PETITIONER, Pershing County Water Conservation District (*“PCWCD” or “District”),
by and through Schroeder Law Offices, P.C. and its attorneys, moves this Court for an Order
granting Leave to Amend Petition for Writ of Mandamus, or in the alternative, Writ of
Prohibition (“Petition”).

This Motion is brought pursuant to NRCP 15(a), and is being requested to clarify the
District’s request for relief stated in the original Petition. This Motion is also supported by the
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Motion for Leave to Amend Petition for
Writ of Mandamus, or in the alternative, Writ of Prohibition (“Points and Authorities”) filed in
conjunction herewith. A draft of Petitioner’s First Amended Petition for Writ of Mandamus, or in
the alternative, Writ of Prohibition (“Amended Writ”) is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

/17
i
11/
Iy
11/
111
/17

Page 2- NOTICE OF MOTION and MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND PETITION FOR WRIT OF

MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
2N LAWOFFICES,PC PHONE (775) 786-8600 FAX (877) 600-4971

{POX29922. 0243 19MIC )




1 PCWCD respectfully requests this Court grant its Motion for Leave to Amend Petition
2 {| for Writ of Mandamus, or in the alternative, Writ of Prohibition.‘
3
4 | RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, this 2nd day of November, 2016.
5
SCHROEDER LAW OFFICES, P.C.
6
8 Laura A. Schroeder, NSB #3595
9 Therese A. Ure, NSB #10255
440 Marsh Ave.
10 Reno, NV 89509
PHONE - (775) 786-8800
1 FAX - (877) 600-4971
counsel@water-law.com
12 Attorneys for PCWCD
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

Page 3- NOTICE OF MOTION and MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND PETITION FOR WRIT OF
MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue

- SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
‘ LAW OFFICES, P.C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

{POI2992Z. 0243 19 MIC }




EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A



1 | SCHROEDER LAW OFFICES, P.C.
Laura A. Schroeder, NSB #3595
2 || Therese A. Ure, NSB #10255
440 Marsh Ave.
3 || Reno, Nevada 89509-1515
PHONE: (775) 786-8800, FAX: (877) 600-4971
4 || counsel@water-law.com
Attorneys for PCWCD
5
6 {| Affirmation: This document does
not contain the social security
7 || number of any person.
8
9 IN THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
10 IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PERSHING
11
12 | PERSHING COUNTY WATER Case No. CV 15-12019
CONSERVATION DISTRICT,
13 Department No. 01
Petitioner,
14 FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR
v. WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE
15 ALTERNATIVE, WRIT OF
JASON KING, P.E., State Engineer of the PROHIBITION
16 || State of Nevada, DIVISION OF WATER
RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF
17 | CONSERVATION AND NATURAL
18 RESOURCES,
19 Respondent.
20
21 PETITIONER, Pershing County Water Conservation District (“PCWCD” or “District”™),
272 {| by and through Schroeder Law Offices, P.C. and its attorneys, hereby seeks a writ of mandamus,
23 || or alternatively, a writ of prohibition, to require the State Engineer to use statutory available
24 || tools in order to: 1) bring all over-appropriated groundwater basins surrounding the Humboldt
25 Il River back to their perennial annual yield; 2) eliminate the cone of depression caused by over-
26 |l allocation of groundwater pumping causing interference with surface water flows in the

Page 1- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue

M Reno, NV 89509
7 N LAW OFFICES, PC.

PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-497]

{P0O329811, 0243 19 MIC }




O 0 N O A WN e

NN NN NN s e e e e R ek b e e
WM bh W N = O VW e N R W N = O

26

Humboldt River; and 3) regulate water used for mining and milling pursuant to Nevada statutory

code.

PCWCD has worked extensively with the Nevada State Engineer (“State Engineer”) and

Nevada Division of Water Resources (“NDWR”) to develop a plan which will allow the District

to be served its senior decreed water rights, while at the same time limit, to the extent possible,

curtailment of groundwater pumping that is pulling water away from the Humboldt River to the

detriment of the District. The State Engineer has repeatedly failed to take action to effectively

manage the water resources within the Humboldt River Basin, after many attempts by PCWCD

to assist in developing a suitable plan. Accordingly, the District is now forced to take legal action

in order to ensure its senior decreed water rights are served and protected under Nevada law.

This writ is based on the Memorandum of Points and Authorities and Affidavit of Bennie

B. Hodges filed in conjunction herewith, the papers and pleadings that will be filed in this

matter, and any argument the Court may allow.!

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
Pursuant to NRS 34.150 et seq., PCWCD hereby submits the following Memorandum of

Points and Authorities in support of its First Amended Petition for Writ of Mandamus, or in the

alternative, Writ of Prohibition,

A District Court may issue a writ of mandamus to compel the performance, or writ of

prohibition to dispel the performance, of an act by one whom the law enjoins has a duty resulting

from their public office. The State Engineer, in violation of Nevada law, has allowed the

majority of groundwater basins surrounding the Humboldt River to become over-appropriated,

and thereby capture Humboldt River water, in violation of Nevada’s statutory water code and the

! In the interest of judicial economy and to refrain from duplicating documents in the record, this Amended Writ will
reference the Affidavit of Bennie B. Hodges filed in conjunction with the original Writ, filed August 12, 2015, and
is incorporated herewith.

Page 2- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION
440 Marsh Avenue
Jf SCHROEDER || geno, v 89509
£y LAWOFFICES, pC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

{PO329311, 0243 19MK )




O 00 93 N W A W e

NN DN e e e el el et et ek el ek

26

prior appropriation doctrine. There is no other plain, speedy, and adequate remedy at law, and
the Court must therefore order the State Engineer to use statutory available tools in order to:

1) Bring all over-appropriated groundwater basins surrounding the Humboldt River back
to their perennial annual yield;

2) Eliminate the cone of depression caused by over-allocation of groundwater pumping
causing interference with surface water flows in the Humboldt River; and

3) Regulate water used for mining and milling pursuant to Nevada statutory code.

I. INTRODUCTION

PCWCD is an irrigation district in Lovelock Nevada, formed under Chapter 539 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes. 4ffidavit of Bennie B. Hodges in Support of Petition for Writ of
Mandamus, or in the alternative, Writ of Prohibition (*Affidavit of Hodges™)§ 1. PCWCD is a
quasi-municipal agency that is led by a Board of Directors and its manager Bennie Hodges.
Affidavit of Hodges 19 1, 2. PCWCD owns, controls, and operates a water conveyance system
that provides water to approximately 100 constituents holding approximately 37,506 acres of
irrigated agricultural lands within the District boundaries. Affidavit of Hodges § 3. PCWCD
operates diversion structures and dams along the Humboldt River, as well as diversion structures
within the District’s boundaries. Affidavit of Hodges 4.

The District controls an extensive amount of senior decreed surface water rights for the
use of Humboldt River water. 4ffidavit of Hodges 9 5. In recent years, many water related issues
have plagued the Humboldt River and the basin. Many of the Humboldt River Basin’s
groundwater aquifers are greatly over-appropriated, and groundwater pumping within the
vicinity of the river is pulling water away from the river. PCWCD’s land is situated at the lowest
reaches of the Humboldt River Basin, so while the District holds very senior decreed water
rights, little water is making it to the District’s service and water righted areas. Affidavit of
Hodges 4 6. In 2015, the District experienced its second year with 0% water allocated to its
constituents. Affidavit of Hodges 1Y 7, 8.

Page 3- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenu
SCHROEDE Reno, NV 89509
LAW OFFICES PC

PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

(PO329811.0243 19 MUC )




1 Due to the increase in groundwater pumping in the Hmboldt River Basin, along with
2 | many temporary permits® to appropriate water being issued by NDWR, less water is available in
3 | the Humboldt River for diversion. This “new” appropriation of water is creating a system of
4 |i water allocation in violation of the prior appropriation doctrine, and Nevada’s statutory water
5 || code. The State Engineer has failed to take required action to sustainably manage the water
6 || resources in the Humboldt River Basin.
71 II. ISSUE PRESENTED
8 Must this Court issue a writ of mandamus, or in the alternative, a writ of prohibition,
9 || ordering the State Engineer to sustainably manage groundwater in the Humboldt River basin
10 || according to Nevada law?
11 | IIIl.  FACTUAL BACKGROUND
12 a. Humboldt River Basin Groundwater Pumping
13 The Humboldt River Basin is comprised of 34 separate and distinct hydrographic
14 | groundwater basins. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 1; Affidavit of Hodges § 10. According to
15 || NDWR, there are 1,852 wells within the Humboldt River Basin, and 1,291 groundwater permits
16 | with their point of diversion within 5 miles of the Humboldt River and its tributaries, of which
17 || 273 capture 10% or more of their water from the Humboldt River. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 7
18 || at 19-21. The total combined perennial yield® of all collective groundwater basins in the
19 || Humboldt River Basin is 476,400 AFA. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 2; Affidavit of Hodges ¥ 11.
20 || However, the total combined permitted groundwater allocation is 753,394 AFA. Id. Of the 34
21 {| hydrographic basins within the Humboldt River Basin, 23 are over-appropriated. /d.
22
23 | T A “cemporary permit" is a permit issued to appropriate groundwater which is limited as to time, See NRS
24 534.1203)(a).
3 Perennial Yield is “The amount of usable water of a ground water reservoir that can be withdrawn and consumed
25 || economically each year for an indefinite period of time. It cannot exceed the sum of the Natural Recharge, the
Artificial (or Induced) Recharge, and the Incidental Recharge without causing depletion of the groundwater
26 | reservoir.” NDWR Water Words, http://water.nv.gov/pro s/] i icti /wwords-P.pdf at 236.

Page 4- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue

»!/\ SCHROEDER [ peno N 89509
£ LAWOFFICES,PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-497}

[POI2981).024).19 MUC )




O 0 N N N B W -

NN NN R e st i b et ek et ped e
a.z:.ww—-cxooo\lmm&uw»-c

N
=)

Page

The majority of groundwater in the Humboldt River Basin is used for irrigation and
mining purposes. /d. Of these groundwater permits, irrigation use accounts for 455,385 AFA of
appropriation, and mining use accounts for 171,343 AFA of appropriation. /d. Water use for
mining is most significantly used to dewater open pit mines, which is the current practice of
extracting minerals in the Humboldt River Basin.* This practice often seeks to extract ore from
below the water table, which requires the mining area to be “dewatered.”® Generally, the mine
drills a number of wells around the mining pit, then pumps water to create a cone of depression
under the pit, thereby drying up the mining area.® When the pit is not being dewatered, the pit
fills up to the level of the water table, creating a pit lake.’

In Nevada, the State Engineer grants permits for mining and milling on a “temporary”
basis. See, Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 5. However, rather than issuing one-year temporary
permits, historically, the State Engineer issues permits for mining and milling akin to permanent
water rights while side-stepping an analysis as to whether water is available for appropriation.
See, Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibits 9, 10. The Humboldt River Chronology states that “mine
dewatering and mine pit lake formation, and their potential near-term and long-term effects on
groundwater levels and surface-water flows™ has been identified as a principal water-related
issue plaguing the Humboldt River Basin.? State Engineer Ruling 5876 states:

The State Engineers Office considers water used in mining and
milling to be a temporary use of water and as such is not
considered in the amount of water appropriated in a basin. The
State Engineer finds if the water used for mining and milling is
removed from the amount of water appropriated for each basin...
there is water available for appropriation. The State Engineer finds

4 Humboldt River Chronology Volume I, Part 1, hitp;//water.nv.gov/mappin i ¢-ptl.pdf at
94.

‘i,
SH.
T1d.
81d. at 14,

5- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenuc
f SCHROEDER Reno. NV £9509
\ / SLARRVLDER 2

LAW OFFICES. P.C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 6004971

(PO329311: 0243 19 MIC §




O 0 ~N1 N W b WN e

NN NN et s et e e et e el ped et
3§ww-—0\oo¢\rc\mhwm-—o

26

the perennial yield of the ground-water belongs to the basin and

not to the Humboldt River.
Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 5 at 2. Accordingly, the State Engineer has not considered the use of
water for mining and milling to be appropriative, and finds a lack of interconnection between
surface and groundwater sources, and states that the perennial yield of the groundwater basin
belongs to the basin and not the Humboldt River. Id.

In more recent years, the State Engineer has recognized interconnection between
groundwater and surface water in the Humboldt River Basin. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 4. In
State Engineer Ruling 6299, the State Engineer changed the perennial yield for the Lovelock
Valley groundwater basin, finding that it is over-appropriated, and denied applications due to a
potential influence on decreed Humboldt River rights. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 4.

b. PCWCD’s Water Rights

Through the acquisition of additional water, including change applications approved by
the State Engineer, PCWCD currently holds the following Humboldt River Decree® water rights
of use'®:

e Water Right Permit 12955 (Certificate 4861) has a combined duty of 14,432.32
acre-feet per year (“AFA”), and a priority date ranging between January 1, 1873
to January 1,1887;

e Water Right Permit 12953 (Certificate 4436) has a combined duty of 4,154.08
AFA, and a priority date of January 1, 1871;

? “Humboldt River Decree” or “decreed” rights referenced herein refer to surface water rights, issued subject to the
adjudication of the Humboldt River, under Sixth Judicial District Court, County of Humboldt, Case No. 2804.

10 A portion of the water rights referenced are currently held in trust by the United States Department of Interior
(Permits: 12955, 12953, 12954, 12952, 12951, 12950, 12957, 12956, 10283) and Department of Reclamation
(Permits: 12948, 12947, 12957), for the District. Currently, the water rights are in the process of being transferred
back to the District as they have now fulfilled their repayment obligations pursuant to contracts entered into with the
United States. (See, Affidavit of Hodges § 13).

Page 6- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
[ SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
/N LAWOFFICES, PC PHONE (775)786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

(PO32981E.0243 19 MIC )




—
®

A =2 - B . T, D - S VL B o )

N N N N N Ponnd [ — Pk ek p— it — [y ot
w g (V8 ] [ (8] —t [ O o0 ~} [=)Y (%] E =Y w N Yt S
[ ] [ ] [ L J L ] [ ] [ ]

Water Right Permit 12954 (Certificate 4437) has a combined duty of 1,925.52

AFA, and a priority date ranging between January 1, 1873 to January 1, 1877,
Water Right Permit 12952 (Certificate 4572) has a combined duty of 14,432.32
AFA, and a priority date ranging between January 1, 1873 to January 1, 1887,
Water Right Permit 12951 (Certificate 4435) has a combined duty of 1,282.87
AFA, and a priority date of January 1, 1873;

Water Right Permit 12950 (Certificate 4571) has a combined duty of 3,023.49
AFA, and a priority date of January 1,1874;

Water Right Permit 12949 (Certificate 4570) has a combined duty of 2,626.30
AFA, and a priority date ranging between January 1,1874 to January 1, 1887;
Water Right Permit 12948 (Certificate 4434) has a combined duty of 1,925.52
AFA, and a priority date ranging between January 1, 1863 to January 1, 1866;
Water Right Permit 12947 (Certificate 5040) has combined duty of 562.17 AFA,

and a priority date ranging between January 1, 1873 to January 1, 1880;

Water Right Permit 12957 (Certificate 5180) has a combined duty of 1,647.18
AFA, and a priority date of January 1, 1877,
Water Right Permit 12956 (Certificate 4506) has a combined duty of 100,000

AFA for storage in Rye Patch Reservoir, and a priority date of December 12,
1933;

Water Right Permit 10283 (Certificate 9258) has a combined duty of 15,152.32
AFA for storage in Rye Patch Reservoir, and a priority date of August 13, 1938;
Water Right Permit 1098 (Certificate 2130) has a combined duty of 20,200 AFA,
and a priority date of August 21, 1908;

Water Right Permit 1948 (Certificate 2131) has a combined duty of 29,570 AFA,
and a priority date of February 10, 1911.

26 || Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 3; Affidavit of Hodges § 12.

Page 7- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

{POI2YB15, 0243 19 MUC )

440 Marsh Avenue

- SCHROEDER | po.o nv g9s09
LAW OFFICES. P C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 6004971




£ S VS B 8]

A =2 - - I - v

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

c. PCWCD attempted to reach solution with the State Engineer.
After feeling the effect of groundwater pumping that decreases flows within the

Humboldt River, coupled with the ongoing drought in the West, the District sought the assistance
of the State Engineer to develop a collective plan to ensure PCWCD’s senior water rights are
délivered, while at the same time attempting to allow junior rights to continue to allocate water
to the greatest extent possible. Affidavit of Hodges 9 16. On August 21, 2014, PCWCD prepared
a report for the State Engineer to assist in the development of such a plan. Affidavit of Hodges §
17.

The report, titled Water Management in a Prior Appropriation System: Conjunctive
Management Solutions to Groundwater Withdrawals Affecting Surface Water Flows within the
Humboldt River Basin, is meant to provide the State Engineer with information about how other
western states are approaching the issue of interconnection of water resources, as well as provide
data regarding the interconnection issues in the Humboldt River Basin. 4ffidavit of Hodges,
Exhibit 6; Affidavit of Hodges 9 17. The report then provides the State Engineer with a list of
requested “Action Items” and asks the State Engineer to take action to: 1) develop a system of
conjunctive management; 2) regulate mine dewatering under statutory code; 3) account for
“temporary” permits in the hydrographic basins’ annual budget; 4) regulate mining pit lakes
under statutory code for water storage; S) curtail junior groundwater rights in basins surrounding
the Humboldt River, until perennial yield equilibrium is met; 6) require mandatory metering on
groundwater wells in the Humboldt River Basin; 7) create an enforcement officer to regulate
groundwater use; and 8) bring groundwater basins back to sustainability. /d. On September 9,
2014, the PCWCD Board Members and Manager met with the State Engineer to discuss the
report and request action. Affidavit of Hodges 4 18. While the District understands that not all

actions taken by other states are applicable to the difficulties effecting Nevada, the point was to

Page 8- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
O/ SCHEOEDER. || g v it
/.Y LAWOFFICES, P C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

(PO329811.0243.19 MIC § -




O 0 NN W s W N e

NN RN N me e e e e b e e b e
&'ﬁuw-—-c\oooqmu-.&ww—ﬂo

[\
(=)}

Page

start the conversation to develop a system of water management that will work for Nevada.
PCWCD received no written response to its report or otherwise.!! Id.

On January 14, 2015 and January 15, 2015, the State Engineer held a series of workshops
on the Humboldt River stating his intent to prepare a capture model in the basin, to be completed
within 4 to 5 years. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 7 at 12; Affidavit of Hodges ¥ 19. The State
Engineer also demonstrated a simple “Glover” analysis capture model illustrating that
groundwater pumping curtailment would supply additional water to the Humboldt River, but
determined that the “Glover analysis shows that curtailment of pumping over one irrigation
season will not cause an appreciable gain in Humboldt River flows.” Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit
7 at 23. The State Engineer concluded that “it is anticipated that there will be NO groundwater
curtailment in 2015.” Id.

On March 24, 2015, with a second irrigation season with 0% allocation looming,
PCWCD Board Members again met with the State Engineer, this time presenting data through a
District retained hydrogeologist. Affidavit of Hodges ¥ 20. The District provided to the State
Engineer a Request for Implementation of Water Management Strategies. Affidavit of Hodges,
Exhibit 8; Affidavit of Hodges Y 20. PCWCD expressly asked for a written response to its letter
and presentation. /d. No response was received. Id.

IV. ARGUMENT

This Court must issue a writ of mandamus, or in the alternative, a writ of prohibition,
ordering the State Engineer to regulate the water resources of the Humboldt River Basin
according to Nevada law. The District has exhausted every remedy available to it, and thus there
is no plain, speedy, or adequate remedy available.

/111
/11

! The State Engineer has begun the process to require groundwater meters to be installed on wells within the
Humboldt River Basin.

9- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANi)AMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION
| 440 Marsh Avenue
Jf SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
/N LAW OFFICES,PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 6004971

(POI29811.024) 19 MIC )




(S

O 0 N s WwWN

NN NN ek e i e e e e b e et
&ﬁuw-—-o\om\lo\m&wwuo

26

a. A District Court may issue a writ of mandamus or prohibition to compel or
dispel the performance by a state official of an act that the law requires.

A district court may issue a writ of mandamus, or in the alternative, a writ of prohibition,
to compel or dispel the performance by a state official of an act the law requires. A writ of
mandamus “may be issued by the Supreme Court, the Court of Appeals, a district court or a
judge of the district court, to compel the performance of an act which the law especially enjoins
as a duty resulting from an office, trust or station...” NRS 34.160. In other words, “[a] writ of
mandamus may be issued to compel the performance of an act that the law requires as a duty
resulting from an office, trust or station, or to control an arbitrary or capricious exercise of
discretion.” Diaz v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 116 Nev. 88, 93 (2000). A writ of mandamus
“shall be issued in all cases where there is not a plain, speedy and adequate remedy in the
ordinary course of law.” NRS 34.170; see also, Diaz v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 116 Nev. 88,
93 (2000). “Mandamus is an extraordinary remedy, and the decision as to whether a petition will
be entertained lies within the sound discretion of this court.” Brewery Arts Ctr. v. State Bd.
Examiners, 108 Nev. 1050, 1053 (1992). A formal order refusing to perform is not required. See,
Whitehead v. Nevada Comm'n on Judicial Discipline, 873 P.2d 946, 964 (1994).

A wrrit of prohibition “is the counterpart of the writ of mandate.” NRS 34.320. “It arrests
the proceedings of any tribunal, corporation, board or person exercising judicial functions, when
such proceedings are without or in excess of the jurisdiction of such tribunal, corporation, board
or person.” Id. “While a writ of prohibition is most often used to restrain courts or judicial
tribunals, it can also be used to restrain persons in other classes who are exercising or attempting
to exercise judicial or quasi-judicial functions beyond their powers.” Mineral County v. State,
117 Nev. 235, 243-244 (2001).

This Court must issue a writ of mandamus, or in the alternative, a writ of prohibition,
because there is no plain, speedy, and adequate remedy at law, and the State Engineer has failed

to take action and sustainably manage the groundwater basins surrounding the Humboldt River.

Page 10 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
/ SCHROEDER || peoc v 9509
/N LAW OFFICES,PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

{PO329811. 0243 193UC ) m——




1 | The State Engineer has a statutory duty to sustainably manage the groundwater basins within the

2 | Humboldt River Basin, and ensure that junior groundwater use does not impact senior decreed

3 || surface water rights, and must perform such duties prescribed by law.

4 b. The State Engineer has failed in his statutory duty to manage groundwater in

the Humboldt River Basin sustainably, and is prohibited by law from granting

5 applications that conflict with a prior decree, senior water right, are detrimental

6 to the public interest, or where there is no water available at the proposed

source.

7

8 The Nevada State Engineer has a duty to manage groundwater in a sustainable manner,

9 || and cannot grant an application to appropriate water in the State of Nevada, if such appropriation
10 || conflicts with a decree or senior water right, is detrimental to the public interest, or where there
11 [ is no water available at the proposed source. Chapter 533 of the Nevada Revised Statutes
12 {| governs the State Engineer’s ability to grant a new or change application to appropriate water in
13 || Nevada. Each time an application is made to appropriate new water, or change an existing right,
14 || the State Engineer must perform a multi-step process to determine whether the application may
15 || be granted.

16 NRS 533.370(2) sets the test the State Engineer is required to perform prior to granting
17 || an application to appropriate water, and provides as follows:
18 [W]here there is no unappropriated water in the proposed source of
supply, or where its proposed use or change conflicts with existing
19 rights...or threatens to prove detrimental to the public interest, the
State Engineer shall reject the application and refuse to issue the
20 requested permit.
21
See also, Redrock Valley Ranch, LLC v. Washoe County, 254 P.3d 641, 647 (2011).
22
Similarly, NRS 533.371 governs the issuance of a temporary permit to appropriate water,
23
and states:
24 .
The State Engineer shall reject the application and refuse to issue a
25 permit to appropriate water for a specified period if the State
¢ Engineer determines that:
2

Page 11 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue

SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
/e LAW OFFICES, PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-497] |

(PO329811,0243 19 MIC ) |




O 00 S N D R W

NN NN NN e e ek et et b b b ek e
WM b W N = O O NN AW NN - O

26

1. The application is incomplete;

2. The prescribed fees have not been paid;

3. The proposed use is not temporary;

4. There is no water available from the proposed
source of supply without exceeding the perennial yield or
safe yield of that source;

5. The proposed use conflicts with existing rights; or

6. The proposed use threatens to prove detrimental to
the public interest.

The State Engineer violated his statutory duties by allowing groundwater allocation
within basins surrounding the Humboldt River where there 1) is no unappropriated water, 2) that
conflict with existing rights, 3) that are detrimental to the public interest, and 4) that conflict with
the Humboldt River Decree. Further, the State Engineer violated his statutory duties by finding
that groundwater used for mining and milling is a temporary use of water, and is not
appropriative.

1. The State Engineer violated his statutory duties by allowing groundwater
allocation where there is no unappropriated water available,

The State Engineer cannot grant an application to appropriate water when there is no
unappropriated water at the proposed source to fulfill the application. NRS 533.370(2). To make
this determination, the State Engineer must assess whether there is “unappropriated” water
available. Id. The amount of unappropriated water available is based on the perennial yield of the

groundwater basin where application is sought. The term “perennial yield” is defined as:

The amount of usable water of a ground water reservoir that can be
withdrawn and consumed economically each year for an indefinite
period of time. It cannot exceed the sum of the Natural Recharge,
the Artificial (or Induced) Recharge, and the Incidental Recharge
without causing depletion of the groundwater reservoir. Also
referred to as Safe Yield."?

/71
11

12NDWR Water Words, ://water.nv.gov/programs/planning/dictionary/wwords-P.pdf at 236.

Page 12 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION
| J SCHROEDER M Meo;uc
\£ LAW OFFICES, P C. Reno, NV 893

PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971
{PO3Z9811: 0243 19 MIC




O 0 N B W e

[1& 2 S I N R T e e e . T R

N
[=)}

Page

Similarly, the Nevada Supreme Court has stated that “[t]he perennial yield of a hydrological
basin is the equilibrium amount or maximum amount of water that can safely be used without
depleting the source.” Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe of Indians v. Ricci, 245 P.3d 1145, 1147
(2010). If granting an application to appropriate water causes the groundwater basin to exceed its
“perennial yield” then there is no “unappropriated water in the proposed source of supply” and
the “State Engineer shall reject the application and refuse to issue the requested permit.” NRS
533.370(2).

The Humboldt River Basin contains 34 groundwater basins, of which 23 are over-
appropriated. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 2. Over-allocation of groundwater resources
surrounding the Humboldt River directly violates NRS 533.370(2), requiring the State Engineer
to deny applications to appropriate water when there is not enough water in the groundwater
basin to serve the application. In violation of his statutory duties, the State Engineer has granted,
and continues to grant applications to appropriate groundwater in excess of perennial yield, when
“there is no unappropriated water in the proposed source of supply...” /d.

2. The State Engineer violated his statutory duties by allowing groundwatel:
pumping that conflicts with existing rights.

" The State Engineer cannot grant an application to appropriate water that conflicts with an
existing right. NRS 533.370(2). Pursuant to NRS 533.030, “[a]ll appropriation of water in the
State of Nevada for a beneficial use, is subject to existing rights.” Regarding groundwater, an
application can only be granted if “rights of holders of existing appropriations can be
satisfied...” NRS 534.110(5). The State Engineer cannot allow a new or changed appropriation
to conflict with another’s pre-existing water right of use. Allowing conflicting water use violates

both Nevada statutory law and the prior appropriation doctrine.'

'3 In 1885, the Supreme Court of Nevada firmly repudiated the common law riparian doctrine and confirmed that
prior appropriation is the law in Nevada. Jones v. Adams, 19 Nev. 78, 84-88, 6 P. 442 (1885). Once prior
appropriation became the law in Nevada, the prior appropriation doctrine required a claimant to show actual
physical diversion of water from its source with intent to apply the water to beneficial use within a reasonable time

13 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
Jf SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
/N

LAW OFFICES, P C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971
(FOI29811. 0243 19 MIC ) - -




O 0 9 O b W N

NN NN e s e e et ek et e
3§uN—‘O\O®\JO\U\AwN-—'O

8]
(=)}

Page

PCWCD holds senior decreed surface water rights to the Humboldt River. Because its
rights are senior in priority to almost every other groundwater right within the Humboldt River
Basin, groundwater rights granted by the State Engineer with a priority date junior to that of the
District’s decreed rights cannot conflict with the District’s senior rights. Any “conflict” violates
NRS 533.370(2) and the prior appropriation doctrine.

The State Engineer has granted hundreds of permits to appropriate groundwater within
the Humboldt River Basin. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 7. Upon consideration of each
application to appropriate water, the State Engineer is required to determine whether the
appropriation will conflict with existing rights. See NRS 533.370(2). The State Engineer
recognizes that groundwater pumping in the Humboldt River Basin is pulling water away from
the Humboldt River, making less water available to decreed surface water right holders. Affidavit
of Hodges, Exhibit 7.

While the State Engineer has historically not found that groundwater pumping conflicts
with surface water rights (Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 5), in recent years, the State Engineer has
denied some applications because “additional pumping would cause an increase in infiltration of
the surface water of the Humboldt River into the groundwater aquifer, thereby potentially
reducing river flow to the extent that it could conflict with existing decreed Humboldt River
water rights.” Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 4 at 11. This inconsistent water resource management
demonstrates that while the State Engiheer now recognizes that Humboldt River decreed
“existing rights” are negatively impacted by groundwater pumping, other applications were

granted to the detriment of decreed Humboldt River rights. This impact and conflict is something

Cont.
to establish a possessory interest in \Agatcr. Aztplicarion of Filippini, 66 Nev. 17, 22 (Nev. 1949). Generally, an
appropriation of water relates back to the time when the first step to secure it was taken, if the work was prosecuted
with reasonable diligence. Irwin v. Strait, 18 Nev. 436, 436 (1884). Water allocation in the State cannot interfere
with earlier senior appropriations. See generally, Desert Irrigation, Ltd. v. State, 113 Nev. 1049, 1051 (1997). This
doctrine does not distinguish between groundwater and surface water.

14 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue

4 SCHROEDER
SRR |1 Reno, NV 89509
LAW OFFICES, P C. -

PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

(PO329831.0243 19 MIC }




O & N Y B W e

NN NN N R e ke D et ek e bt b e e
WM B W N e OO0V OO0 N YN T s W = O

26

the State Engineer should have taken into consideration before allowing the junior groundwater
use, and before allowing the basins to become over-appropriated.

Because junior rights continue to conflict with senior rights, the State Engineer violated
his statutory duties by approving the conflicting groundwater use, by allowing the groundwater
basins to become over-appropriated, and by allowing the groundwater use to continue when it
conflicts with the District’s senior decreed rights. See NRS 533.370(2).

3. The State Engineer violated his statutory duties by allowing groundwater
pumping that is detrimental to the public interest.

The State Engineer cannot grant an application to appropriate water when such
appropriation is in detriment to the public interest. NRS 533.370(2). The State Engineer must
perform a public interest assessment prior to allowing any appropriation of water in the state. A
public interest determination requires the State Engineer to review both environmental and
economic interests in the area, and determine whether these interests are impacted. See generally,
Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe of Indians v. Washoe County, 112 Nev. 743,

Humboldt River surface flows are being pulled away from the river, and being allocated
by groundwater users in the Basin. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 7. This interconnection causes
great economic and environmental hardship to PCWCD and its constituents. With less water in
the river, the District’s constituents are unable to produce viable crops in sufficient quantity to
justify continued agricultural use, something detrimental to both the economic and
environmental interests iri the area. Affidavit of Hodges 9§ 8. These public interest factors should
have been taken into consideration by the State Engineer before allowing the over-appropriation
of the groundwater basins surrounding the Humboldt River. .

The State Engineer violated NRS 533.370(2) by allowing groundwater use that is
detrimental to the public interest.

/11
111

Page 15- FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
\% SCHROEDER |l poos nv 89509
/.

LAW OFFICES, P.C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

IPOVRLT B2 1O MY




Do e NN W e

NN NN N e e e et e et et bewh ed e
{\A,ADJN'—-O\OOO\!O\MAMN'—‘O

[0
[}

Page

4. The State Engineer violated his statutory duties by finding that
groundwater use for mining and milling is not appropriative, and issuing
permanent water rights.

Similar to the above analysis, the State Engineer is required to assess temporary uses of
water pursuant to NRS 533.371. Under NRS 533.371, groundwater appropriations in conflict
with existing rights, that are detrimental to the public interest, and where there is no
unappropriated water available, are not allowed. Further, a statutory temporary change in use of
water cannot be granted for a period of more than one year. NRS 533.345. The State Engineer
also cannot grant a statutory temporary application to appropriate water when the use of water is
not actually a temporary use. NRS 533.371.

In the Humboldt River Basin, the State Engineer considers water used for mining and
milling to be a “temporary use” of water, and does not consider this use of water to be
appropriative. Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 5 at 2. Water used for mining and milling purposes,
among other uses, is used to “dewater” open pit mines, which use often continues for many years,
even after the mine ceases operations. Rather than issuing “temporary” permits for this use, and
conducting the necessary analysis under NRS 533.371, the State Engineer allows this
“temporary” use of water to continue indefinitely under a permanent water right. See, Affidavit of
Hodges, Exhibits 9, 10.

Even if the State Engineer were to issue the proper statutory temporary permit for mining
and milling use, his action would again violate Nevada law, because water used for mining and
milling is not a temporary use of water. See NRS 533.371. While the mines may not be in
operation forever, the effects the pit lakes created when the mine ceases to pump will hold water
open to the air and land surface, and out of the enclosed groundwater aquifer indefinitely. Also,
the State Engineer refuses to recognize the evaporative losses pit lakes create as an appropriation
requiring a water right. See, Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 11 at 5. The State Engineer violated
Nevada Law by issuing permanent water rights for mining and milling in the Humboldt River

Basin, without considering the appropriative nature of such use.

16 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION
] 440 Marsh Avenve
SCHROEDER Rego, NV 89509
'-A""°‘"°55 PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

{PO329811. 0243 19 MIC)




W 00 N Rk W N e

[ 6 I S I NG R (O e e e e T T T
gngHO\OOO\lO\UR-hWM'—‘O

26

5. The State Engineer violated his statutory duties by allowing groundwater
pumping in conflict with a State issued court decree.

In addition to the State Engineer’s power over the approval of groundwater appropriation,
the State Engineer is an officer of the Court in its administration of Court issued State decrees.
The State Engineer must uphold State issued decrees, and ensure no interference occurs. NRS
533.0245 states:

The State Engineer shall not carry out his or her duties pursuant to
this chapter in a manner that conflicts with any applicable
provision of a decree or order issued by a state or federal court, an
interstate compact or an agreement to which this State is a party
for the interstate allocation of water pursuant to an act of
Congress.

As demonstrated above, the State Engineer has allowed numerous groundwater basins
surrounding the Humboldt River to become over-appropriated. This over-appropriation is now
pulling water away from the Humboldt River, thereby making less water available to
downstream senior water right users such as PCWCD. By allowing groundwater pumping to
impact Humboldt River Decree rights, the State Engineer is violating the Humboldt River

Decree, the very Decree he is charged to uphold, and in doing so, he also violates NRS 533.0245.

c. The State Engineer has tools available to sustainably manage over-appropriated
groundwater basins and bring them back to perennial vield, including
designating a critical groundwater management area.

The State Engineer, in violation of his statutory duties, has allowed the groundwater
basins surrounding the Humboldt River to become over-appropriated. The State Engineer has
statutory tools available to more effectively manage over-appropriated groundwater basins and
bring them back into perennial yield, and has a legal obligation to do so, for example designating
a critical groundwater management area. Pursuant to NRS 534.110(7), the State Engineer “may
designate as a critical management area any basin in which withdrawals of groundwater
consistently exceed the perennial yield.” This designation gives the State Engineer additional

power to more effectively carry out groundwater basin management.

Page 17 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION

11 440 Marsh Avenue
SCHROEDER || peno, NV 29509
£ LAWOFFICES.PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 6004971

(POI298IE 0243 19 MIC )




O X NN N B W e

NN N N e et e ek et et ed el b et
gszv-‘O\OOO\lO\MAUJN'—‘C

[l
(=)

Page

Upon designation as a critical management area, groundwater users within the designated
basin may petition the State Engineer for approval of a groundwater management plan. NRS
534.037(1). This plan, if approved, allows groundwater users to take steps to bring the basin
back to sustainability, and eventually remove the critical management basin designation. /d. If a
plan is not approved, and sustainability is not reached within 10 years, the State Engineer is then
required to curtail groundwater pumping. NRS 534.110(7)(b). “If a basin has been designated as
a critical management area for at least 10 consecutive years, the State Engineer shall order that
withdrawals, including, without limitation, withdrawals from domestic wells, be restricted in that
basin to conform to priority rights, unless a groundwater management plan has been approved
for the basin pursuant to NRS 534.037.” Id. In other words, the designation allows groundwater
appropriators time to develop a plan to bring the basin back to sustainability, and alleviate
curtailment to the greatest extent possible.

By designating the over-appropriated basins surrounding the Humboldt River critical
groundwater management areas, the State Engineer can begin to develop a plan with the
groundwater users to bring the basins back to their sustainable yield. This in turn will begin to
ease the impact this over-appropriation has on the river, and the negative effect on the District’s
senior decreed water rights. The State Engineer must use his statutory powers to correct his
previous violations of allowing the over-appropriation in the first place. If the State Engineer
does not use his statutory powers to bring the groundwater basins back to sustainability, he has
no choice but to curtail groundwater use by priority, and pursuant to the prior appropriation
doctrine.

Unless a plan is established by the State Engineer that will both eliminate the impacts of
junior groundwater appropriations to the District’s senior surface water rights, the State Engineer
must curtail junior water rights by priority until basin equilibrium is met. As outlined above,
Nevada is a prior appropriation state, requiring all senior water rights be first met before later in

time rights. See generally, Desert Irrigation, Ltd. v. State, 113 Nev. 1049, 1051 (1997).

18 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
Jf SCHROEDER || peue. nv 89509
.

LAW OFFICES. P C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

(PO32SULL 0243.193UC }




1 While the issue of curtailment under the prior appropriation doctrine has not yet been
2 || reviewed by the Nevada Supreme Court, courts in other western prior appropriation states have.
3 }i For example, in Clear Springs Foods, Inc. v. Spackman, 150 Idaho 790 (2011), the Idaho
4 | Supreme Court reviewed a decision of the Director of the Idaho Department of Water Resources
5 || to curtail junior groundwater pumping in favor of senior surface water right. The issue arose due
6 || to connection between the surface and groundwater sources. Id. at 794. The court ultimately
7 || upheld the curtailment of junior rights, and stated that “[w]hen there is insufficient water to
8 || satisfy both the senior appropriator's and the junior appropriator's water rights, giving the junior
9 | appropriator a preference to the use of the water constitutes a taking for which compensation
10 {| must be paid.” Id. at 798. Further, the court reiterated its past position in stating
11 || “[a]ny interference with a vested right to the use of water, whether from open streams, lakes,
12 || ponds, percolating or subterranean water, would entitle the party injured to damages, and an
13 || injunction would issue perpetually restraining any such interference."’ Id. at 811; citing Bower v.
14 {| Moorman, 27 Idaho 162, 181 (1915).
15 Under a similar analysis, if a plan cannot be developed allowing the District access to its
16 || decreed rights, currently being depleted by junior groundwater pumping, there is an absolute
17 || legal right to curtailment. That being said, the District is open to any reasonable option, under the
18 | State Engineer’s statutory authorized tools that cures this interference, allowing the least harm to
19 | junior groundwater pumping.
20 d. The District has exhausted every remedy in an attempt to have its senior rights
21 served.
22 The District owns and controls a substantial number of senior Humbbldt River decreed
23 || water rights. See, Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 3. In turn, the District and its constituents have a
24 |i great deal to lose should groundwater pumping be allowed that continues to deplete surface
25 || water flows. The District has met with the State Engineer on multiple occasions to discuss
26 || options and develop a plan to better manage the water resources within the Humboldt River

Page 19 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION
440 Marsh Avenue
J\/\ SCHROEDER | ¢ ) nv s9s09
£ LAWOFFICES, P C PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 6004971

(P0329811.0243 19 M4C ) -




O 0 N N R W N e

N | S I NS T S R o T T S S

26

Basin, and to ensure the District receives its water, pursuant to the Humboldt River Decree. The
District has further provided the State Engineer with research, information, and data regarding
other states’ methods, as well as data pertaining to the Humboldt River Basin. See, Affidavit of
Hodges, Exhibit 6. The District has made written requests for action by the State Engineer. See,
Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibits 6, 8. The District has asked for a written response to its requests.
See, Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibit 8. The State Engineer has made no response to the District’s
requests, and has taken little action in response to the ongoing over-allocation of water in the
basin, in violation of the prior appropriation doctrine. Affidavit of Hodges § 20. By making no
response, the District is deprived of the opportunity for an adequate and speedy legal remedy.

Historically, the State Engineer has not recognized the connection between surface and
groundwater sources; however, he now concedes that connection does exist between the two
water sources. See, Affidavit of Hodges, Exhibits 4, 7. In his January 2015 Humboldt River
workshop, the State Engineer provided a Glover analysis in an attempt to determine groundwater
pumping’s effect on surface water flows. This simplified scenario used water wells capturing at
least 10% of their water from the Humboldt River, and ran the scenario over one (1) 180-day
irrigation season. It was determined that curtailment of groundwater pumping will place
additional water into the river. This solution did not take into consideration the years of pumping
that occurred prior the scenario, and did not take into consideration the effect of curtailment
moving forward more than a single irrigation season. The benefit of groundwater basin
sustainability will be greater when one takes into account the history and future of groundwater
pumping.

By failing to take any immediate action to bring the over-appropriated groundwater
basins surrounding the Humboldt River back to perennial yield, the State Engineer continues to
violate Nevada statutory code, and the prior appropriation doctrine. PCWCD has exhausted all

options and therefore, there is no other plain, speedy, and adequate remedy to bring the

Page 20 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT

OF PROHIBITION

1] 440 Marsh Avenue
/ SCHROEDER | Reno, NV 89509
/N LAWOFFICES,PC PHONE (775) 7868800 FAX (877) 600-4971

$POIZIBLL. 0243 §9 MIC ©




O 8 NN R W e

[ T G S N T N N N T S R S L e L e T Y
N B W N e O W0 0 NN R W= O

o]
(=)

Page

groundwater basins back to perennial yield, and to eliminate the negative effect to the Humboldt
River.
V. REQUESTED RELIEF

The District has a beneficial interest in obtaining writ relief. The State Engineer has
granted groundwater applications in excess of perennial yield in the Humboldt River Basin, and
in violation of Nevada’s statutory water code and the prior appropriation doctrine. Groundwater
pumping in the Humboldt River Basin is pulling water away from the Humboldt River, leaving
less water to serve decreed water right holders. PCWCD and its constituents hold some of the
most senior decreed rights to the Humboldt River, rights senior to most groundwater users. When
a junior water right captures water meant to serve a senior right, this action violates Nevada law
and the prior appropriation doctrine. The State Engineer has failed to take action to sustainably
manage groundwater as required under Nevada law.

This Court must issue a writ of mandamus, or in the alternative, a writ of prohibition
ordering the State Engineer to immediately take action and use any and all statutory available
tools in order to:

1) Bring all over-appropriated groundwater basins surrounding the Humboldt River back
to their perennial annual yield;

2) Eliminate the cone of depression caused by over-allocation of groundwater pumping
causing interference with surface water flows in the Humboldt River; and

3) Regulate water used for mining and milling pursuant to Nevada statutory code.

If the State Engineer fails to use his statutory powers to bring sustainability back to the
Humboldt River Basin groundwater aquifers, curtailment is necessary to achieve sustainability

pursuant to the prior appropriation doctrine.

111
iy
/11

21 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION

440 Marsh Avenue
J\/\ SCHROEDER Rezo, NV 89309
LY LAW OFFICES, PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

1POI29811.0243.19 MIC )




1 This Court should order Respondent to show cause before the Court, at a time and place
2 || set by the Court, why he has not fulfilled his statutory duties established herein.
3
4 | RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, this 2nd day of November, 2016.
5
SCHROEDER LAW OFFICES, P.C.
6
’ Q\NW\’\,\/\N
8 Laura A, Schroeder, NSB #3595
9 Therese A. Ure, NSB #10255
440 Marsh Ave.
10 Reno, NV 89509
PHONE - (775) 786-8800
11 FAX - (877) 600-4971
counsel@water-law.com
12 Attorneys for PCWCD
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
Page 22 - FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT
OF PROHIBITION
440 Marsh Avenue
Reno, NV 89509

SCHROEDER
uw omcas. "LAW OFFICES, PC.

PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

(POI29811. 0243 19 MIC ¥




EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A




IN THE OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA #1251

ORDER

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) § 534.120 provides that within an area that
has been designated by the State Engineer where, in his judgment, the groundwater basin is
being depleted, the State Engineer in his administrative capacity is empowered to make such
rules, regulations and orders as are deemed essential for the welfare of the area involved.

WHEREAS, the State Engineer designated all or a portion of most groundwater basins
within the Humboldt River Basin Hydrographic Region (4) as provided under the provisions of
NRS § 534.030, by the following State Engineer’s Orders:

Basin ‘ No. S:E.Order  Date
Marys River Area 042 837 02/14/1984
Starr Valley Area 043 867 07/10/1985
North Fork Area 044 744 05/28/1980
Lamoille Valley 045 869 07/18/1985
South Fork Area 046 870 07/18/1985
Huntington Valley 047 865 07/10/1985
Dixie Creek - Tenmile Creek Area 048 848 09/06/1984
Elko Segment 049 778 12/08/1981
Elko Segment 049 864 07/10/1985
Susie Creek Area 050 866 07/10/1985
Maggie Creek Area 051 863 07/10/1985
Marys Creek Area 052 868 07/18/1985
Pine Valley 053 862 07/10/1985
Crescent Valley 054 755 03/20/198}
Antelope Valley 057 276 08/05/1964
Middle Reese River Valley 058 276 08/05/1964
Lower Reese River Valley 059 739 03727/1980
Whirlwind Valley 060 799 10/05/1982
Boulder Flat 061 799 10/05/1982
Clovers Area 064 700 12/30/1977
Pumpemickel Valley 065 1241 10/03/2014
Kelly Creek Area 066 536 05/09/1915
Little Humboldt Valley 067 1242 10/03/2014
Paradise Valley 069 408 1012271971
Winnemucca Segment 070 464 07/24/1972
Winnemucca Segment 070 534 05/06/1975
Winnemucca Segment 070 1246 11/24/2014
Grass Valley 071 464 07/24/1972
Grass Valley 071 1247 11/24/2014
Imlay Area 072 702 01/31/1978

Lovelock Valley - Oreana Subarea 073A 369 02/25/1969
White Plains 074 716 07/06/1978




Order 1251
Page 2

WHEREAS, the State Engineer finds that it is in the public interest (0 ensure that the
diversions of underground water in those designated groundwater basins comprising the
Humboldt River Basin Hydrographic Region (4) are within the limits set forth in each water right
permit, certificate or other authorization to divert groundwater.

WHEREAS, NRS § 534.110 provides that the State Engineer may require periodic
statements of water elevations, water used, and acreage upon which water was used from all
holders of permits and claimants of vested rights.

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that all owners of underground
water rights in the above described hydrographic basins, with the following exceptions, shall
install and maintain, in accordance with manufacturer’s specifications, a totalizing meter in the
discharge pipeline near the point of diversion by February 1, 2016. Additionally, all wells
drilled afier February 1, 2016, shall be subject to this requirement.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Those wells drilled for domestic purposes as defined by NRS § 534.013.

2. Those wells drilled for stockwater purposes, unless otherwise required by the
terms of the permit or certificate.

3. Those wells with a total authorized withdrawal that does not exceed five acre-feet

annually, unless otherwise required by the terms of the permit or certificate.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that within thirty days of installation, each owner who
installs a totalizing meter in accordance with this order shall file with the State Engineer a report
of installation on the form provided by the Nevada Division of Water Resources.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that once the totalizing meter is installed, monthly
records shall be kept-of the amount of water piniped from each well subject 1o this order, and the
records shall be submitted to the State Engineer within 15 days after the end of cach calendar
quarter, or more frequently if required by the terms of the permit or certificate.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

1. Each water right owner shall expeditiously correct totalizing meter failure or
deficiencies in metering equipment or installations that cause the meter to fail to
meet the requirements of this order.

[

The State Engineer may authorize the temporary estimation of the amount of
water pumped during the time period required to repair a non-functional totalizing
meler. Estimation of the amount of water pumped must be based upon the
number of hours the pump was operated, multiplied by the well discharge
diversion rate. This estimation must be submitted to the State Engineer in the




Order 1251
Page 3

form of a swom affidavit from the water right owner, but is in no way a direct
substitute for a totalizing meter installed in the discharge pipeline.

3. Each water right owner shall provide access to the totalizing meter by State
Engineer staff without prior notice for reading and inspection.

4. Any tampering with a working totalizing meter, i.e., reprogramming, such that the
totalizing meter provides a false measurement is prohibited. 1f upon inspection,
the State Engineer finds discrepancies between the totalizing meter reading and
actual discharge from the well, an independent certification of the flow
measurement may be required at the expense of the water right holder.

I A sz

JA¥ON KING} P.E.
te Engineer

Dated at Carson City, Nevada this

§'_" day of February, 2015.




O 0 N N W Rl W e

NN N N NN s s e et b et b bk ek e
[0 S O P S = Y - B - - S B . WV SR < VS A S e =)

26

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that on November 2, 2016, I caused a copy of the forgoing NOTICE OF
MOTION and MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND PETITION FOR WRIT OF
MANDAMUS, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, WRIT OF PROHIBITION to be served via U.S.
mail from the state of Nevada on the following parties:

Nevada Attorney General’s Office
Attn: Justina A. Caviglia

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, NV 89701

Dated this 2™ day of November, 2016.

Y I/L—«/

Yaurd A. Schroeder, NSB #3595
Therese A. Ure, NSB #10255
440 Marsh Ave.
Reno, Nevada 89509-1515
PHONE: (775) 786-8800, FAX: (877) 600-4971

counsel@water-law.com
Attorneys for PCWCD

Page 1- CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

440 Marsh Avenue

/ SCHROEDER Reno, NV 89509
/Y LAW OFFICES, PC PHONE (775) 786-8800 FAX (877) 600-4971

{POIS1944. 0243 19LMM )}



Agenda Item IILF.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

\
| 1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Professional Services
1 Agreement (PSA) with Lumos and Associates for design of the Exit 298 Lift Station
| and Sewer Force Main Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
} ACTION

|

|

2. Meeting Date: February 12,2019

4. Time Required: 3 Minutes

|
\
|
|
|
|
\
|
‘ 3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
~ \
5. Background Information: At the January 8, 2018 City Council meeting, Council |

directed Staff to negotiate a Professional Services Agreement with Lumos and }

Associates and bring that agreement back to City Council for final approval. RL ;

6. Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: $250,000.00
Budget amount available: $250,000.00
Fund name: Sewer/WRF

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Requred
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Proposal from Lumos and Associates and PSA
9. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the PSA with Lumos and Associates for

design of the Exit 298 Lift Station and Sewer Force Main.
10. Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
11.  Committee/Other Agency Review:
12.  Council Action:

13.  Council Agenda Distribution: Lumos and Associates

Created on 01/28/2019 Council Agenda Action Sheet































AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

PROJECT: WRF - Exit 298 Lift Station

THIS AGREEMENT, made this 13th day of February, 2019, between the
CITY OF ELKO, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, hereinafter
referred to as “City,” and Lumos & Associates, Inc. of Carson City, NV,
hereinafter referred to as “Consultant.”

RECITALS

1. The City desires to obtain professional consulting services for the
following project: WRF — Exit 298 Lift Station and Force Main, hereinafter
referred to as the “Project.”

2. The City requires certain professional design services in connection
with the Project, hereinafter referred to as “services.”

3. Consultant is able and desires to perform such professional services
as may be required by City upon the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.

4. The budget for the project as developed by City and acknowledged
by Consultant is Two hundred fifty thousand Dollars ($250,000.00).

5. Consultant has made site inspections, consulted with the City and is
fully acquainted with the requirements and scope of work of the Project.

THEREFORE, City and Consultant, for and in consideration of
Consultant’'s compensation to be paid by City to Consultant as provided below,
and in further consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement,
agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Consultant agrees to perform all of the professional services in
connection with the Project and comply with the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement, which shall be performed in a diligent manner in accordance with
the highest standards of consultant professionals, and shall provide City and the




contractor with any information and documents required by them in order that
there shall be no delay in the Project.

Section 1.2 The parties understand and agree that this Agreement is for
employment of professional services, and Consultant agrees not to assign or
transfer its interest in this Agreement. Consultant agrees not to delegate to those
outside Consultant’s firm the duties required to be performed under this
Agreement, except that Consultant shall have the right to engage other qualified
consultants, architects, engineers, and draftspersons to assist in the preparation
of the required work. Consultant represents that at least one principal member of
Consultant’s firm shall be licensed to practice in the State of Nevada for the
entire term of this Agreement. Consultant further agrees that if, at any time after
the commencement of the services under this Agreement, the firm shall cease to
be engaged in licensed engineering, architect or other professional practice in
the State of Nevada or otherwise shall be unable to perform the duties under the
Agreement, or if any of the principal members of the firm shall die or become
insolvent, City will then have the right and option to terminate this Agreement and
the employment of Consultant under this Agreement. In the event of such a
termination, Consuitant shall be compensated for services performed to the date
of such termination in accordance with the provisions of Article X of this
Agreement.

Section 1.3 All time limits stated in this Agreement are of the essence.

Section 1.4 Consultant, in designing the Project, shall use his best
professional efforts to take into consideration the Project’s relation to community
interests and adjacent developments, and its environmental impact. To this end,
Consultant shall assist City in making reports and presentations in connection
with these aspects of the Project to all state and local public agencies having
jurisdiction and/or other community or related interest groups.

Section 1.5 City reserves the right to employ other engineers and
consultants in connection with the Project.

Section 1.6 City will have the right to disapprove any portion of
Consultant’s services on the Project, including, but not limited to, schematic
design studies, design studies and construction documents for any reason,
including, but not limited to, aesthetics, or because, in City’s opinion, the
construction cost is likely to exceed the maximum construction budget for the
Project.




Section 1.7 All site work shall be on the NAD 83 Nevada East Zone 2701
Ground coordinate system for integration into the City of Elko’s drawing
database.

Section 1.8 Redesign Responsibilities - The DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
shall be required to make necessary corrections at no cost to the City of Elko
when the designs, drawings, specifications, or any other items or services under
this Agreement contain errors, deficiencies, inadequacies, or do not meet
minimum requirements of local, state and federal agencies and OSHA standards.

ARTICLE Il
CONSULTANTS

Section 2.1 Unless specifically directed otherwise by City, Consultant
shall, subject to City's prior written approval of the same, retain and administer
the work of all necessary outside consultants.

Section 2.2 Consultant shall review the work of all outside consultants
engaged by him for the Project and shall certify to City that this work is complete
and meets Consultant’s requirements.

Section 2.3 Consultant will coordinate and cooperate with any and all
other consultants retained directly by City. Consultant shall coordinate the work
of his own outside consultants. Consultant shall certify to the best of his
knowledge and belief that any work performed by City’s consultants is complete
and meets Consultant’s requirements, and Consultant shall notify City if any such
work performed by City’s other consultants is not satisfactory and/or is
incomplete when compared to Consultant’s requirements.

ARTICLE Il
CONSULTANT’S BASIC SERVICES

Section 3.1 The services to be rendered by Consultant as provided in this
Section shall constitute and collectively be called the “Basic Services” (see
Exhibit 1 — Lumos Proposal). City authorizes Consultant to proceed with that
portion of the Basic Services as required by the preliminary site planning and
schematic design phase. No other services shall be undertaken by Consultant
and City will not incur any liability for fees or expenses to Consultant for such
services, unless and until City gives Consultant a separate written approval to
proceed with each successive phase of the services provided for in this
Agreement. Upon receipt of each approval, Consultant shall perform the




services provided for in the phase as set forth and described in this Agreement.

Section 3.2 Consultant's Basic Services shall include all the necessary
professional disciplines required by the nature of the Project. Consultant shall
also prepare and supply to City cost estimates as further defined in this
Agreement, so as to assist City in all possible ways in connection with City's
efforts to prevent the total cost of the Project from exceeding the maximum
construction budget.

Section 3.3 Any and all consultants retained by Consultant for basic
services have been listed in the SOQ and are approved by the City.

Section 3.4 The professional services of Consultant shall be performed in
accordance with the phases set forth in this Agreement.

Section 3.5 Phase | - Preliminary Site Planning and Schematic Design_
Phase. Professional services to be performed by Consultant under this phase
shall include, if applicable, but not be limited to the following:

1. Examination of the site and surrounding area by the Consultant;

2. Study of all codes, ordinances, rules, orders, regulations and
statutes affecting the Project, including, but not limited to, fire and
safety codes, and adherence to these matters in the performance of
all phases of Consultant’s professional services under this
Agreement and in the preparation of the Contract documents to be
supplied under this Agreement;

3. Determination of availability of utility facilities and recommendations
covering electric power, gas, water, sewage disposal and storm and
sanitary drainage systems;

4. Recommendation for electrical systems for the Project. These
recommendations shall be substantiated by comparative feasibility
and economic studies;

5. Preparation of an engineering analysis based upon subsurface
conditions to determine the practical alternate solutions for
foundations;

6. Preparation of schematic designs, site plans, presentation




renderings in color, and site model or models as required by City to
understand Consultant’s design concepts;

Preparation of preliminary construction cost estimates to establish
the estimated maximum construction cost.

Preparation of preliminary drawings at a suitable scale accessible to
City, including, but not necessarily limited to utility layouts, materials,
mechanical systems and equipment, and any additional documents
required for purposes of clarity.

In each instance of required submittals, 3 copies of all schematic design
studies shall be submitted to City for approval. Phase | shall terminate upon
written approval by City of all Phase | services of Consultant.

Section 3.6 Phase Il - Design Development Phase. The design
development phase shall commence upon written approval by City of all Phase |
submissions and services and written authorization for Consultant to proceed,
and shall terminate upon written approval by City of all Phase |l submissions and
services. Phase |l professional services shall consist of preparation by
Consultant of design development plans. The design development studies shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

1.

A site plan showing all buildings in relation to final grades with all
proposed connections to existing or proposed roads and utilities.
Landscaping shall be blocked in;

Electrical and mechanical systems presented in preliminary and one
line diagram form;

Plans and specifications describing construction materials and
systems in reproducible form acceptable to City; and

Consultant shall supply the City for review purposes complete sets
of prints or plans and specifications as City may require. All plans
and specifications submitted to the City for approval shall be in
conformance with OSHA standards, the applicable laws, statutes,
zoning ordinances, building codes and regulations of all city, county,
state and federal agencies having jurisdiction over the work, and
shall bear all necessary stamps of approval.




In each instance of required submittal, 3 copies of all design development
studies shall be submitted to City by Consultant for approval and shall not be
deemed to have been accepted until City has notified Consultant in writing.

Section 3.7 Phase Ill - Construction Documents Phase. The Construction
Documents phase shall begin on the written approval of the City of all design
development studies and other Phase Il services and written authorization to
Consultant to proceed, and shall terminate on the approval by City of the
Construction Documents and all other Phase il services. The professional
services under Phase lll shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

1. The preparation by Consultant of any and all Construction
Documents, which shall describe and delineate the Project and shall
be in such detail as is necessary to permit complete construction of
the Project. The Construction Documents shall include the following:

a. Work drawings;

b. Site, including results of all subsurface soil investigations,
existing grades, new final grades, paving, curbs, utility
structures, planting and lawns;

C. Mechanical
d. Electrical instrumentation.
2. Complete specifications which shall describe the scope, materials

and quality of workmanship;
3. General conditions and special conditions;

4. Proposal forms and bidding information. In each instance of
required submittals, 3 copies of the Construction Documents shall be
submitted to City by Consultant for written approval. Upon approval,
Consultant shall provide City with one set of reproducible working
drawings and 3_sets of specifications, as a part of the basic services
under this Agreement. Additional sets of drawings and
specifications shall be provided, at cost, if requested by City;
Consultant shall file all these documents and required revisions as
needed with local authorities to produce plans and specifications
acceptable by OSHA standards, local building standards, codes and
ordinances;

5. N/A - During the bidding period and process, Consultant shall




provide the following:

a. Assist City in obtaining and analyzing proposals from
contractors and in awarding and preparing the construction
contract;

b. Interpretation of Construction Documents when requested by
prospective bidders;

C. Preparation and issuance to prospective bidders of addenda,

amendments and/or supplementary drawings required for

clarification;

Attend bidder's meetings as requested by City; and

e. Attend bid openings as requested by City to assist in analysis
of bids and in recommendations and reports on disposition of
bids and awards.

o

6. N/A - If the lowest bona fide bid exceeds the maximum construction
costs established in writing by City, City may, at its election, do one
of the following:

a. Give written approval of an increase in the fixed limit;

b. Authorize rebidding the Project within a reasonable time; and

C. Cooperate in revising the Project scope and quality as
required to reduce the construction cost.

If City elects (a) above, Consultant shall not be entitied to any
increase in his fee for basic services because of the approved
increase in the maximum construction cost. If City elects (c) above,
Consultant, without additional charge, and as part of the basic
services under this Agreement, shall modify the drawings, plans and
specifications as necessary to bring the construction cost within the
fixed limit. The providing of this service shall be the limit of
Consultant’s responsibility in this regard.

N/A - Section 3.8 Phase IV - Administration of Construction Contract
Phase. Phase IV shall commence on written notice to Consultant from City
indicating City’s authorization to so proceed and shall terminate upon final
acceptance of the Project by City. Engineer's Phase IV professional services
shall include, if applicable, but not be limited to, the following:

1. Consultant shall review and approve all shop drawings, materials,
samples, schedules and colors submitted by the contractor.




Consuitant shall act expeditiously in its review indicating changes
where necessary. Consultant shall assemble and submit to City all
manuals, brochures and drawings needed for operation and
maintenance of the Project. Consultant shall assemble all written
guarantees, affidavits and releases from the contractor,
subcontractors and subordinate subcontractors for delivery to City as
required by the Construction Documents;

Consultant shall prepare and distribute to all appropriate persons,
any necessary bulletins, drawings, supplemental specifications, etc.,
necessary to clarify or supplement the Construction Documents
throughout Phase 1V;

Consultant shall interpret drawings and specifications as necessary
and in a timely manner in order that the requirements of contract
documents shall be faithfully carried out. Consultant will keep City
informed of the progress of the work. Consultant shall not accept
any work which fails to conform to the Construction Documents;

Consultant shall request and promptly review proposals for changes
in the work, make recommendations to City, and, upon written
authorization from City, promptly issue change orders in
conformance with the requirements of the Construction Documents.
No changes shall be made to the original copies of the Construction
Documents. All changes to drawings shall be made on reproducible
copies of the original drawings. Such revisions shall be clearly
indicated and a current revisions date shall be included on the
reproducible copy. Changes to specifications shall be made by
consecutively numbered and dated addenda,;

Consultant, if requested by City, shall prepare all requests for
change estimates. Change estimates shall be reviewed by
Consultant and approved, if requested by City;

Consultant and his consultants shall make bi-monthly or more
frequent, as may be required by City, visits to the Project site to
inspect construction activities, render decisions in the field and
interpret drawings. On the basis of Consultant’s observations,
Consuitant shall guard City against defects and deficiencies in the
work and review the general quality of construction for reasonable
conformance with the Construction Documents. Consultant shall




10.

11.

submit periodic written reports, as may be and as often as shall be
required by City, on the progress of construction with
recommendations as to materials, manpower and quality of work.
These bi-monthly or more frequent periodic visits on a regularly
scheduled basis are part of the basic services during Phase IV;

In cases of apparent conflict in the work caused by two or more
trades working side by side or close together, Consultant shall work
with the contractor to resolve such conflict, including the resolution of
any problems indicated on the coordinated mechanical composite
shop drawings prepared by the contractor(s). Consultant shall use
his best professional efforts in resolving such conflicts to the end that
no additional cost shall accrue to City;

Consultant and his consultants (as and when required by City) shall
attend meetings in the field, as regular job meetings, on a bi-monthly
basis, or more often, as may be required by City;

Consultant shall coordinate the activities of his consultants;

Consultant shall assist City in obtaining temporary and permanent
certificates of occupancy for the Project;

Consultant shall receive the contractor’'s requisitions for payment,
and Consultant will determine the amounts owing to the contractor
and will issue certificates for payment in the amounts. These
certificates will constitute a representation to the City, based on
Consultant’s determination and the data comprising the requisitions
for payment, that the work has progressed to the point indicated. By -
issuing a certificate of payment, Consultant represents to City that
the quality of work is in accordance with the Construction
Documents. Consultant shall conduct observations to determine the
date of substantial completion and issue a final certificate of
substantial completion, prior to City’s acceptance of the work.
Consultant shall also issue, prior to City's final acceptance of the
work, a list of observed items, materials or systems for replacement
or additional work by the contractor, and shall compile, in
conjunction with the City, a final “punch list” prior to final acceptance
and payment to the contractor, and shall then notify City of punch list
corrections. Consultant shall conduct inspections to determine the
date of final completion and issue a final certificate for payment




when due, and have the contractor obtain and submit the wriften
guarantees and releases required,;

12. Consultant shall collect from the contractor, confirm the accuracy
and completeness of the “as built” drawings and deliver two (2) sets
(one paper and one electronic) to City upon completion of the
Project; and

13.  Assuring that the contractor maintains an up-to-date set of record
drawings reflecting “as-built” conditions of the work at all times.

ARTICLE IV
RESIDENT FIELD SUPERVISION

Section 4.1 If required by City, as part of additional services, Consultant
shall furnish one or more qualified engineer field supervisors who shall be
stationed at the Project site for the duration of the Project and who shall be
assisted by technical specialists as required. The Project site supervision shall
include, but not be limited to, attention to all disciplines listed in Section |11 of this
Agreement.

Section 4.2 Subject to prior approval by City of the individual so chosen,
the resident field supervisor(s) shall be selected, employed and directed by
Consultant and his services reimbursed for in accordance with Section ViIl.

Section 4.3 The duties of the resident field supervisor(s) shall include, but
not be limited to, the following:

1. Iinspection of all work to determine the progress, quality, quantity and
conformance of the work with the requirements of the Construction
Documents;

2. Issuing of field orders as directed by City;

3. Compliance with contractor's safety measures for protection of
persons and property;

4 To advise City of problems, such as strikes, delays in receipt of
materials, etc., which may affect the construction schedule;

5. Participation in job coordination meetings with the City, Consultant

10




10.

and the contractor;

Maintaining a periodic record of construction progress as directed by
City and submitting daily construction progress reports to City;

Coordination with local agencies and City’s architectural/engineering
department, as may be requested by City;

Verification of contractor’s statement of quantities of materials priced
on a unit cost basis; reimbursable field costs of the contractor, if any,
for authorized overtime and time and material work; and amount of
construction “work in place” completed each month for purpose of
the contractor’s request for payment;

Performance of such other related duties which are reasonably
within the scope of this Agreement as may be required by City; and

Consultant’s field supervisor shall keep and make readily available,
a daily diary noting the following, but not limited to, weather, work
activities performed, daily pay amount, major events (i.e., accidents,
emergencies and form failure), important phone calls, conversations,
discussions with contractor and property owners, official visitors
name and purpose, major equipment, sizable work forces moved
onto or off job, general location of work, record material rejected and
reason, delays and duration, total working days.

ARTICLE V
TIME OF SERVICES

Section 5.1 The services of Consultant shall begin upon being notified to
proceed by the City Project Director or his or her designated representative, and
shall be prosecuted to completion with the necessary documents delivered to the
City within the following periods:

1.

The preliminary site planning and schematic design phase as
described in Section 3.5 shall be completed within the time limit
agreed upon by Consuitant and City; however, in no case shall
exceed 86 calendar days after issuance of the notice to proceed,

In any event, all services shall be completed and all materials
delivered to City as provided in Section 3.8 within the time limit

11




agreed upon by Consultant and City; however, in no case shall this
time exceed 168 calendar days after notice to proceed, exclusive of
times for City reviews; and

3. Services of Consultant after opening of a bid such as checking of
shop drawings, construction visits and conferences shall continue
until construction has been essentially completed.

Section 5.2 The Consultant shall submit a Progress Schedule to be
approved and included in the attached Professional Services Proposal. The
Progress Schedule is to outline the dates the Professional Service tasks will
begin and be completed by. Since time shall be of the essence of this
agreement, the Consultant agrees to satisfactorily complete all Professional
Services and work within the time periods shown in the submitted Progress
Schedule.

ARTICLE VI
CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Except as specifically provided herein, City will compensate Consultant on
a fixed fee and time and materials basis in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and as described in the Professional Services
Proposal as follows:

Section 6.1 City will provide Consultant with information and criteria
outlining City's objectives and functional requirements for the Project. City will
furnish to Consultant information and sketches relating to the ultimate intended
use of the premises.

N/A -Section 6.2 City will inform Consultant in writing of the maximum
construction cost for the Project.

Section 6.3 City will maintain close liaison with Consultant, and through
Consultant, with Consultant’s consuitants. City will designate, when necessary,
representatives authorized to act in its behalf. City will examine documents
submitted by Consultant and shall render decisions pertaining to them promptly,
to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of Consultant’s services. City
designates its representative for the project.

Section 6.4 To the extent applicable, City will furnish, to the extent it may
have available, topographic and boundary surveys of the site, showing as

12




required, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property;
rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, deed restrictions,
boundaries and contours of the site; locations, dimensions and available date
pertaining to any existing buildings, other improvements and trees; Consuitant
shall determine what test borings, pits or other subsurface soil investigations are
necessary for the determination of subsurface conditions. However, at the
request of City, Consultant will secure these surveys and will be reimbursed as
provided in Section 3.5. Consultant shall be responsible for (i) the adequacy of
subsurface soil investigations with regard to the type and number necessary
under the particular conditions prevailing at the project site, (ii) the proper
interpretation of the results of these investigations, and (iii) the integrity of all
structures and site improvements based upon the results of such investigation.

ARTICLE Vil
CONSULTANT’S COMPENSATION

City will compensate Consultant in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement as follows:

Section 7.1 For Consultant’s basic services as described in Exhibit 1 —
Lumos Proposal, City will pay to Consultant the fee (in this referred to as the
“basic fee”) in the amount of $250,000.00, notwithstanding total project costs.
(The hourly category rate and reimbursable expenses for meetings and direct
expenses are set forth on Exhibit 2' — Lumos Proposal)

Section 7.2 For Consultant’s reimbursable expense (referred to in this
Agreement as “reimbursable expenses,” and defined and limited in Article VIM,
amounts expended by Consultant on a cost-only basis and in accordance with
the attached Exhibit 2- Lumos Proposal entitled “Charges for Time and Expense
Projects,” dated 2/1/2019, which shall remain in effect during the term of this
Agreement and which may be made after expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by and between Consuitant and
City.

Section 7.3 The times and further conditions of payments shall be
described in Article IX below.

ARTICLE Vili
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

N/A - Section 8.1 Reimbursable expenses are additional reasonable

13




expenditures not included as part of the basic services actually made by
Consultant in the interest of the Project. Consultant shall be reimbursed for the
following reimbursable expenses only to the extent such expenses were
necessarily incurred for the Project pre-approved by the City of Elko as listed in
proposal or scope of service:

1.

Travel, when approved in advance or required by City for Consultant
and his representatives (except for travel in the general area of
Consultant’s office and/or the Project site) over N/A trips to the
Project site which N/A trips are included in Consultant’s basic
services during Phase IV. Travel reimbursement shall be limited to:

a. Reasonable actual cost of any taxi, bus, railroad or air travel
(coach where applicable);

b. Transportation by automobile at N/A cents per mile, plus tolls
and parking; and

C. Reasonable actual lodging expenses and meals incurred while
traveling.

Long distance telephone calls, facsimiles and telegrams;

Statutory fees paid to governmental agencies for securing approvals
of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project; and

Other items contracted for by Consultant at the specific request of
City.

ARTICLE IX
PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANTS

Section 9.1 Payment for the engineering services hereinabove set forth
will be made by City to Consultant and will be considered as full compensation
for all personnel, materials, supplies and equipment used in carrying out the

work.

The Consultant shall provide the City with a monthly detailed invoice
indicating the percentage of work completed for each task to date
and the cost of work completed and as outlined in ‘Exhibit 1 —
Lumos Proposal’. City agrees to pay invoices within 45 days of the

14




date of receipt. The Consultant may suspend services in the event
that an invoice remains delinquent for 75 days from date of invoice;

2. The budget for total charges for services authorized by this
Agreement is established at the time of authorization of each Task
Order and shall not be exceeded without prior authorization by City.
The budget may be increased by amendment hereto if necessary to
complete the scope of work or in the event of a change in the scope
of work. Consultant shall notify City prior to expenditure of eighty
percent (8G%) of the budget if the need for a budget increase is
anticipated. On February 4, 2019, Michael Bennett acknowledges
that he/she has read and agrees to this stipulation;

3. City will have the right to withhold from payments due Consultant
any sums necessary to protect City from and against any loss or
damage which may result from negligence or unsatisfactory services
of Consultant, failure by Consultant to perform his obligations, or
claims filed against Consultant or City relating to Consultant’s
services or work; and

4. Notwithstanding any provision, covenant and/or condition of this
Agreement to the contrary, City will have the right, but not the
obligation, in its sole discretion and on written notice to Consultant,
to make payment directly to any consultant of Consultant, and to
charge or back charge any amount so paid directly to any such
consultant to Consultant.

ARTICLE X
SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF PERFORMANCE

Section 10.1 City may, at any time and for any reason, direct Consuitant
to stop Consultant’s services under this Agreement for a period of time. This
direction will be in writing and will specify the period during which the services
are to be stopped. Consultant shall resume services on the date specified in the
direction, or on any other date as City may subsequently specify in writing. The
period during which services shall have been stopped shall be deemed added to
the time fixed for performance. Stoppage of services under this Section shall not
give rise to any claim against City.

Section 10.2 City may, at any time, with or without cause, terminate this
Agreement by written notice to Consultant specifying the termination date, which

15




will be not less than seven (7) days from the date notice is given. In the event of
termination in this manner, Consultant shall be paid such amount as shall
compensate him for the portion of the services satisfactorily performed prior to
the termination date. Termination upon this Section shall not give rise to any
claim against City.

Section 10.3 In the event that:

1.

Consultant shall for any reason or through any cause not have
completed performance within the time fixed for performance under
this Agreement; or

Grounds for cancellation of the Agreement under this Section shall
arise; or

Consultant shall otherwise be in default under this Agreement; or

City will give Consultant written notice that in its opinion, the conduct
of Consultant is such that the interest of City are likely to be impaired
or prejudiced, stating the facts on which the opinion is based; then
City may, immediately terminate this Agreement for cause within the
same Notice.

Section 10.4 On termination, Consultant shall be entitled to payment of
such amount, to be determined by City, as shall fairly compensate him for the
services satisfactorily performed to the termination date; provided, however, that:

1.

Nothing in this Section is to be construed to relieve Consultant from
any liability and/or damages sustained by City as a result of any
breach by Consultant of this Agreement, and payment by City to
Consultant of any monies pursuant to this Section shall not bar City
from any and all remedies it may otherwise have against Consultant
for any failure of Consultant to perform his services in accordance
with this Agreement;

No amount shall be paid to Consultant under this Sect